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Corporate Profile 

          
• Annual production almost tripled to 948,323 ounces silver and 2,332 oz gold. 
 
• Initial, proven and probable reserves came in at 3.5 million oz silver and inferred resources tripled 

to 10.6 million oz silver (both N.I.43-101 compliant), in addition to the historic 3.8 million oz indi-
cated silver resource in Deep Santa Cruz zone (not compliant with N.I.43-101). 

 
• Cash costs reduced 31% to average US $5.07 per oz silver net of gold credits. 
 
• Bought deal private placement added C$14.4 million to the treasury, and warrant exercise raised 

an additional C$5.7 million. 
 
• Acquired nine silver properties in Guanacevi district from Industrias Peñoles, and formed strategic 

alliance with Peñoles to facilitate further mine acquisitions in Mexico. 
 
• Acquired options to purchase six additional silver properties in Guanacevi district and leased El 

Porvenir property adjacent to the new North Porvenir discovery 
 
• Four exploration drill rigs completed 78 holes totaling 18,700 m of core, intersecting numerous 

high-grade intercepts over robust vein widths. 
 
• Underground channel sampling outlined initial high-grade silver mineralization for mining averag-

ing 698 gpt (20.3 opt) silver and 1.2 gpt (0.03 opt) gold. 
 
• Process plant received top marks from independent engineering audit, with replacement value esti-

mated at US $19.4 million, and “certificate of clean industry” from the government 
 
• Initiated programs for safety procedures, environmental practices and community relations re-

duced lost time accidents by half, and planted several 1000 pine seedlings. 
 

Endeavour Silver Corp. (EDR: TSX, EJD: FSE, EDRGF: OTC-PNK) is a small-cap silver mining company focused 
on the growth of its silver production, resources and reserves in Mexico. The expansion plan now underway at 
the high grade, producing Guanacevi Mines Project should propel Endeavour into the ranks of the top 5 primary 
silver producers in the world.  
 
Endeavour stands out from other primary silver companies for its high silver grades (+15 oz. per ton), its high 
silver leverage (+90%), the substantial exploration upside of the Santa Cruz property (+30 million oz), the sig-
nificant under-utilized capacity of the Guanacevi plant (up to 1400 tpd) and the organic growth potential inher-
ent in these core assets.  

Highlights 2005 
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Dear Shareholders 
 
In its first year of operations at the Guanacevi Project in Durango, Mexico, Endeavour almost tripled the 
annual production to 948,323 oz silver and 2,332 oz gold or 1,088,543 oz silver equivalents (at a 60 silver: 1 
gold equivalence ratio). The Guanacevi plant processed 102,617 dry tonnes grading 385 gpt Ag and 0.88 gpt 
Au or 438 gpt Ag eq. (12.8 oz. per ton) in 2005.  Metal recoveries averaged 74.7% silver and 80.5% gold. 
 
As of March 31, 2006, initial proven and probable reserves came in at 3.5 million oz silver and inferred re-
sources also tripled to 10.6 million oz silver (both N.I.43-101 compliant), in addition to the historic 3.8 mil-
lion oz indicated silver resource in Deep Santa Cruz zone (not compliant with N.I.43-101).  Drilling contin-
ues to expand the resources at the Porvenir Mine, Deep Santa Cruz and Porvenir Dos mineralized zones. 
 
Endeavour optioned the Guanacevi Project in May 2004 and within the next six months, the Company suc-
cessfully discovered, drilled, and developed the new North Porvenir mine into production.  The tripling of 
resources and production last year was the result of many small achievements by the Company’s skilled op-
erating team based in Guanacevi and Durango, as follows: 
 
 
                          Safety:  Initiated weekly safety meetings and halved lost time accidents with  
                                       double the work-force 
 
                          Environmental:  Instituted a re-forestation program and planted several 1,000 pine 
                                       seedlings 
 
                          Exploration:  Drilled 78 holes totaling 18,700 m of core using 4 drill rigs and effectively 
                                       increased the mine-life to 7 years. 
 
                          Mine:  Drove 2,780 m of new ramps, sills, raises, accesses at Porvenir mine and  
                                       250 m of cross-cuts and 6 drill stations on #13 level at Santa Cruz mine 
 
                          Plant:  Commenced repair and refurbishment of crushing and grinding circuits and received 
                                       the governments “certificate of clean industry” 
 
                          Contractors:  Mining contractor had 100 employees onsite by year-end and drilling  
                                       contractors brought in 4 diamond drill rigs  
 
                          Housing:  Refurbished 6 houses/offices and central bunkhouse in Guanacevi and several old 
                                       mine buildings  
 
                          Community:  Renewed the land use agreement with the local community and established 
                                       good relations  
 
 
For the ten-month fiscal period from March 1 to December 31, 2005, the Guanacevi Project produced 
799,269 oz. silver and 2,160 oz gold or 928,869 oz silver equivalents. 
 
The Guanacevi Project generated US$1.48 million in net operating cash-flow on gross revenues of US$6.5 
million for the ten month period ended December 31, 2005.  Cash operating costs averaged US$5.07 per oz. 
silver net of gold credits and silver sales averaged US$7.01 per oz. net of smelting and refining costs. 
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Capital investments totaled US$3.93 million for fiscal 2005 (ten months), including US$1.68 million on 
mine development, US$0.05 for mill improvements and US$2.20 million on exploration.  At December 31, 
2005, Endeavour had US$ 15.2 million in cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Subsequent to December 31, 2005, Endeavour made the scheduled US$1 million cash payment on January 
28, 2006 to the Guanacevi Project vendors to acquire its 51% interest.  Endeavour can exercise its option to 
acquire the remaining 49% interest in both the mine and the plant by paying US$1.5 million in January 
2007 and US$1.5 million in January 2008.  However, Endeavour controls 100% of net operating cash-flow 
until its capital loans are repaid, bearing 9% interest. 
 
On February 7, 2006, Endeavour’s common shares were listed and commenced trading on the Toronto 
Stock Exchange under the symbol “EDR”.  The shares were voluntarily de-listed from the TSX Venture 
Exchange at the close of trading on February 6, 2006. 
 
In 2006, the Guanacevi Project is expected to produce between 2.0 and 2.2 million oz. silver and from 3,000 
to 3,300 oz gold or approximately 2.2 to 2.4 oz silver equivalents, at a cash operating cost of US$4.25 to 
$4.75 per oz silver.  For its 2006 forecast, Endeavour is using an US$8 per oz silver price, US$480 per oz 
gold price, and a 60 silver: 1 gold equivalence ratio. 
 
Capital costs to expand the mine (US$1.7 million), upgrade the plant (US$1.3 million) and advance explo-
ration (US$1.3 million) are budgeted at US$4.3 million in 2006.  Endeavour specifically hopes these capital 
investments will improve silver recoveries to more than 80% and reduce monthly cash costs to less than US
$4.25 per oz. silver by December 31, 2006. 
 
Because the mine and plant are now entering the next phase of capital development, plant production 
should remain relatively flat in the 1st and 2nd quarters of 2006.  However, mine production continues to 
climb and ore stockpiles are building so that when the plant refurbishment program is completed, produc-
tion should jump in order to meet the output target for 2006. 
 
Endeavour enjoyed a banner year on the Guanacevi Project in 2005.  By aggressively investing in explora-
tion drilling and mine development, we effectively tripled the historic silver resources and production rate.  
Positive cash-flows should fund the next phase of capital investment, expanded resources and reserves and 
a further doubling of silver production.  The coming year looks to be even more rewarding for shareholders 
as the silver price continues to escalate. 
 
 
 
On Behalf of the Board Of Directors  
 
ENDEAVOUR SILVER CORP. 
 
/s/     Bradford J. Cooke 
 
Bradford J. Cooke                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                 April 17, 2006 
Chairman and CEO 
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Introduction 

Entering the new Porvenir Mine 

Guanacevi Project – Durango, Mexico 

Endeavour acquired an option in May 2004 to pur-
chase up to a 100% interest in the Santa Cruz silver 
mine and Guanacevi process plant in the district of 
Guanacevi, Durango, Mexico (the “Guanacevi Mines 
Project”) for US$7 million in cash payments and US
$1 million in work expenditures over a 4 year period. 
In January 2005, Endeavour exercised its option to 
purchase an initial 51% interest in the mine and plant 
by paying US$3 million and spending US$1 million.  
 
The Company paid US$1 million in January 2006 and 
holds the option to purchase the remaining 49% inter-
est for an additional US$3 million in cash payments 
by January 2008. However, Endeavour already con-
trols 100% of the project cash flows because it has the 
right to recover all of its capital investments, with 9% 
interest, prior to any profit participation by the mi-
nority interest. 
 

With the acquisition of the Santa Cruz silver mine 
and Guanacevi process plant, Endeavour appears to 
have captured a core asset that offers tremendous or-
ganic growth potential through the expansion of re-
serves and production to fill the under-utilized capac-
ity of the plant. Santa Cruz had a history of high-
grade silver mining, and it was fully built, permitted 
and producing, although only at a fraction of the 
plant capacity. What the mine needed was a substan-
tial new investment of both expertise and capital in 
order to discover and develop new, high-grade silver 
ore-bodies. 
 
In 2005, its first year of operations at Santa Cruz, 
Endeavour almost tripled the previous annual pro-
duction to 948,323 oz silver and 2,332 oz gold, thanks 
largely to the 2004 discovery and development of the 
new North Porvenir ore-body. Resources also tripled 
to 10.6 million oz and the first-ever reserve estimate 
came in at 3.5 million oz.  The Company also drove 
down cash costs 31% to average US$5.07 per oz in 
2005 net of gold credits. 

Panoramic overview of the district from the mine to the plant 

Mine 

Plant 
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Location 
 
The Guanacevi district is a top five historic silver dis-
trict in Mexico, having produced an estimated 450 
million oz silver plus by product gold, copper, zinc 
and lead. It is located in the heart of the Sierra Madre 
Occidental silver-gold belt, northwest of the prolific 
Fresnillo (Peñoles) and Toyoltita (Goldcorp.) mines 
and southeast of the large El Sauzal (Glamis), 
Ocampo (Gammon Lake) and Mulatos (Alamos) mines 
now under development. 
 
Guanacevi (pop. 2500) is located in northwestern Du-
rango State some 260 km northwest of Durango City.  
It is accessible by paved Hwy 45, about a 4 to 5 hour 
drive. Guanacevi also has a small 1000 m airstrip for 
use by light aircraft. Durango is serviced by daily jet 
flights to major Mexican cities as well as flights every 
other day to Los Angeles and Houston. 
 
Local infrastructure is excellent, with all modern 
amenities including a 34 kv federal power supply and 
a ready labour pool of trained miners. The Guanacevi 
Project includes its own private office and housing 
area for Endeavour personnel adjacent to the plant. 

 
 
 

Guanacevi is a top five Mexican silver  
district located in the Sierra Madre  

silver-gold belt 

Guanacevi has excellent road 
access and local infrastructure 
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“Durango – the Spaniards dream – lies in the heart of the 

famous Sierra Madre Mountains. It’s beautiful climate, 

ancient forests, graceful plains and above all, its wonder-

ful wealth of gold and silver and copper- together with an 

abundance of water- have combined to make it a perfect 

Utopia.  

 

This dream of the Spaniard was not that of everlasting 

youth or beauty, but it formed the basis upon which the 

boldest and most daring pioneers set out to conquer the 

wealth of new and unknown lands, and thus add new 

wealth and impetus to the old world, then in the zenith of 

its glory.” (Las Minas de Mexico, J.R. Southworth, 
1905) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

History 

Mining in Guanacevi by the Spanish dates back to at 
least 1535 and as early as 1616, the Jesuit priest 
Francisco J. Clavijero stated the Guanacevi district 
was already famous for its minerals. Alexander von 
Humboldt, in his writings about New Spain in the 
early 1700’s, described the district as a “rich mineral 
area” in the Sierra Madre Occidental. Some of the fa-
mous mines worked by the Spaniards include: Santa 
Cruz, Garibaldi, Sirena, Capuzaya, San Rafael y 
Fanny, Soto, Nueva Australia, Desengaño, Barra-
don, San Jose, Arianeña, Chamole, Mexicana, Predi-
lecta and Paleros.  
 
By the 1800’s, several English and American compa-
nies worked in Guanacevi, including Restauradora 
Company at Arianena, Barradan y Cabras Company 
at Barradan, Guanacevi Mining Company at Haci-
enda Wilson, F.H. Husted at Anita, the United Mex-
ico Company at Paleros and the Mexican Consoli-
dated Mining and Smelting Company at the mines El 
Soto, Nuevo Porvenir and Nueva Australia in the 
San Pedro area. At its peak in the late 1800’s, up to 
50 small mines were feeding several local mills. A 
small mint was constructed in Guanacevi in 1844. 
However, by the early 1900’s, many of the mines had 
closed. 
 

“Guanacevi in Durango state is a very rich district, and 

many of the largest capitalists of New York have enor-

mous interests in its mines. Considering the large num-

ber of once famous properties, there are comparatively 

few in operation. The cessation of development has been 

due to various causes, though not from lack of ore.  

Stoping for silver the old  
fashioned way 
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In some cases, it has been from lack of funds for the pur-

chase of machinery, also when water in large quantities 

has been encountered. Another cause has been the heavy 

freight and smelter charges, still another, a lack of local 

treatment facilities of ores available only for milling. Lo-

cal critics claim the failures were on account of bad man-

agement. Many of the mills were well constructed, but in 

most cases their erection was hurried, and carried out 

with no adequate concept of the metals to be 

treated.” (exerpted from Las Minas de Mexico, J.R. 
Southworth, 1905) 
 
Like most Mexican mining districts, Guanacevi closed 
after the Mexican revolution of Francisco I. Madero, 
Emiliano Zapata and Francisco (Pancho) Villa in 
1910-1912. Industrias Peñoles subsequently acquired 
the Santa Cruz and Garibaldi mines in the 1920’s and 
developed the 300m deep shaft plus several kilometers 
of underground workings but carried out little produc-
tion. The Guanacevi Mining Company continued op-
erating in the area until its closure in 1942.  The dis-
trict saw sporadic mining activity thereafter until the 
huge rise in the silver price in 1980 prompted renewed 
interest in the . 
 
In 1970, the Comision de Fomento Minero (the mine 
investment arm of the Mexican government) erected a 
250 tpd flotation plant in Guanacevi to facilitate re-
newed production from some of the small mines in the 
district. The plant was expanded to 600 tpd in the 
early 1980’s and then sold in 1991 to Metalurgica 
Guanacevi, who refurbished the plant and completed 
the addition of a 600 tpd cyanide leach circuit.  Start-
ing in 1992, Minera Santa Cruz y Garibaldi produced 
small amounts of high grade ore from the Santa Cruz 
y Garibaldi mines under a lease arrangement with In-
dustrias Penoles. 
 
 

The district of Guanacevi was reknowned for its high 
silver grades. Official records indicate a total historic 
production value of around 500 million pesos, which 
is equivalent to approximately 500 million oz silver 
and equivalents.  That would make Guanacevi one of 
the top five historic silver mining districts in Mexico 
on the basis of past production. 

Mexican ore carrier  
ascending ladder 
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There are five main veins in the Guanacevi 

district, and several smaller veins, spanning 

a 10 km by 5 km area. Guanacevi is a clas-

sic, low sulfidation, epithermal vein district 

hosting bonanza type silver (gold, copper, 

zinc, lead) ore-bodies. 

 

On the Santa Cruz property, the main 

Santa Cruz vein has been traced for over 3 

km and the principal historic ore-body was 

mined for 600 m along strike and 400m 

down dip.  Santa Cruz ores were known for 

their high silver grades (+15 oz per ton), 

high silver contents (+90% silver with by-

product gold-lead-zinc-copper) and robust 

vein widths (+3 m wide on average, but up 

to 10 m in places). 

 

The mine was developed on 13 under-

ground levels by a 300 m deep inclined 

shaft and the No. 6 adit.  Peñoles reported 

a historic resource for the Deep Santa Cruz 

zone totaling 229,000 tonnes grading 525 

gpt Ag and 1.2 gpt gold (not complaint 

with N.I.43-101 and not to be relied upon). 
 
 
 

Within the first 6 months of optioning the Guanacevi Project 
in 2004, Endeavour launched an aggressive exploration drilling 
program, successfully discovered high-grade silver mineraliza-
tion in the new North Porvenir zone, drove a 400 m access 
ramp into it, and commenced trial production. This was only 
possible because management recognized the opportunity to 
add value through exploration to a fully built, permitted and 
operating mine that was perceived to have run out of reserves. 
 
An initial, NI-43-101 compliant, inferred silver resource was 
estimated in early 2005 to contain 4.8 million oz. silver within 
287,900 tonnes grading 516 gpt Ag and 1.3 gpt Au, still open 
for expansion in all directions.  As of March 31, 2006, initial 
proven and probable reserves came in at 3.5 million oz silver 
and inferred resources also tripled to 10.6 million oz silver 
(both N.I.43-101 compliant), in addition to the historic 3.8 
million oz indicated silver resource in Deep Santa Cruz zone 
(not compliant with N.I.43-101).   

 
 

Santa Cruz is one of the five main veins in the district 

Geology 

Exploration 

Sampling high-grade ore 
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Drilling successfully outlined resources in three areas 

formed a strategic alliance with Peñoles to facilitate 
further mine acquisitions in Mexico. 
Drilling will continue throughout the year to ex-
pand the resources at the Porvenir Mine, Deep 
Santa Cruz and Porvenir Dos mineralized zones, as 
well as testing several other target areas. 

In 2005, the number of drill rigs was increased to 
four and 78 exploration drill holes were completed 
totaling 18,700 m of core.  Numerous high-grade 
drill intercepts were reported over robust vein 
widths, for example, 1361 gpt silver and 1.91 gpt 
gold (43.0 opt Ag equiv.) over 3.80 m in hole DSC1-
8, 320 gpt silver and 0.75 gpt gold (10.6 opt Ag 
equiv.) over 6.30 m in hole EP11-C and 709 gpt sil-
ver and 1.06 gpt gold (21.9 opt Ag equiv.) over 3.15 
m in hole NP19-3. 
 
Endeavour acquired options to purchase an addi-
tional 6 silver properties in Guanacevi, and also 
leased the El Porvenir mine property adjacent to 
the new North Porvenir discovery.  These two 
properties are now known as the Porvenir Mine.  
The Company also acquired nine silver properties in 
the Guanacevi district from Industrias Peñoles, and  
 

 
 

Drilling the new  
North Porvenir  

discovery 
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Reserves and Resources 

Silver Gold Silver Gold
Classification Tonnes (gpt) (gpt) Oz Oz (gpt) (oz)

Zone 1

Proven 18,403 426 0.64 252,100 379 470 278,251

Probable 26,293 425 0.63 359,300 533 468 396,077
Proven and Probable 44,696 426 0.63 611,400 912 468 674,328

Zone 1

Proven 75,793 645 0.93 1,571,700 2,266 701 1,707,660

Probable 63,386 637 0.92 1,298,100 1,875 692 1,410,600
Proven and Probable 139,179 641 0.93 2,869,800 4,141 697 3,118,260

All Zones Combined

Proven 94,196 602 0.87 1,823,800 2,645 656 1,985,911

Probable 89,679 575 0.83 1,657,400 2,408 627 1,806,677
Proven and Probable 183,875 589 0.93 3,481,200 5,053 642 3,792,588

Porvenir Mine Reserves
Ag Equivalent

Silver Gold Silver Gold
Vein Tonnes (gpt) (gpt) Oz Oz (gpt) (oz)

Santa Cruz 170,017 407 0.84 2,224,700 4,592 458 2,504,800

Conglomerate 40,115 474 0.73 611,300 942 519 668,760
All Zones Combined 210,132 420 0.82 2,836,000 5,534 477 3,173,560

Porvenir Dos Inferred Resources
Ag Equivalent

Silver Gold Silver Gold
Vein Tonnes (gpt) (gpt) Oz Oz (gpt) (oz)

Shell A 18,879 653 0.59 396,400 358 689 418,240

Shell B 74,237 572 1.21 1,365,200 2,888 646 1,541,370

Shell C 46,916 542 1.07 817,500 1,614 607 915,950

Shell D 12,737 772 1.94 316,100 794 890 364,530

All Zones Combined 152,769 589 1.15 2,895,200 5,654 668 3,240,090

Deep Santa Cruz Inferred Resources
Ag Equivalent

Silver Gold Silver Gold
Classification Tonnes (gpt) (gpt) Oz Oz (gpt) (oz)

Zone 1 197,677 411 0.99 2,612,100 6,292 479 3,046,250

Zones 2 & 3 194,898 369 0.62 2,312,200 3,885 412 2,545,300

All Zones Combined 392,575 390 0.81 4,924,300 10,177 446 5,591,550

Porvenir Mine Inferred Resources
Ag Equivalent
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About 75% of the tonnage was produced from the 
new North Porvenir mine on the Santa Cruz prop-
erty at an average grade of 473 gpt Ag and 0.97 gpt 
Au or 531 gpt Ag eq. (15.5 oz. per ton), including 
development muck.  The remaining production 
came from plant tailings, mine dumps and low 
grade toll milling ores that averaged 121 gpt Ag and 
0.62 gpt Au or 158 gpt Ag eq. (4.6 oz. per ton), 
whenever there was plant capacity available due to 
accelerated mine development. 
 
The Company enjoyed tremendous growth of the 
operations in 2005, as exemplified by production of 
383,087 oz silver and 982 oz gold or 441,983 oz Ag 
eq. in the revised third quarter (four month period 
ended December 31, 2005), approximately triple the 
production rate of the project vendors in prior 
years.  December 2005 set a monthly production 
record of 118,039 oz silver and 296 oz gold or 
135,804 Ag eq., notwithstanding the Christmas 
break. 

 

Prior to its acquisition by Endeavour, the Santa 
Cruz mine was producing about 350,000 oz. silver 
per year. In its first year of operations at the Gua-
nacevi Project in Durango, Mexico, Endeavour al-
most tripled the annual production to 948,323 oz 
silver and 2,332 oz gold or 1,088,543 oz silver 
equivalents (at a 60 silver: 1 gold equivalence ratio). 
The Guanacevi plant processed 102,617 dry tonnes 
grading 385 gpt Ag and 0.88 gpt Au or 438 gpt Ag 
eq. (12.8 oz. per ton) in 2005.  Metal recoveries av-
eraged 74.7% silver and 80.5% gold. 
 
As production increased, Endeavour was able to 
drive the cash costs down 31% from US $7.10 per 
oz. to US $4.60 per oz, averaging US$5.07 per oz. 
silver for the year, net of gold credits. The Guana-
cevi Project generated US$1.48 million in net oper-
ating cash-flow on gross revenues of US$6.5 million 
for the ten month period ended December 31, 2005. 

 

Production 

The Guanacevi process plant 
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At the Porvenir Mine, the Company drove 2,780 
m of new access ramps, sills, raises and cross-
cuts; widened the main haulageway to increase 
the ore haulage capacity; bored a 222 m Robins 
ventilation raise; and built a new 3 km haul road 
link from the mine to the plant.  At Santa Cruz, 
the 300 m deep inclined shaft and hoist were re-
paired; the deepest mine level #13 was re-opened 
and 250 m of cross-cuts were developed; and 6 
drill stations were cut underground to facilitate 
the re-drilling of the Deep Santa Cruz historic 
resource. 
 

Several offices, houses and mine buildings were 
rehabilitated and new safety, environmental and 
community officers were hired.  A new safety 
program reduced lost-time accidents in half with 
almost double the personnel onsite and a refores-
tation program of several 1000 pine seedlings 
was completed.  A plant refurbishment program 
commenced in 2005 with the re-construction of 
one tailings dam and repairs to the crushing and 
grinding circuits.  The government awarded the 
plant its “certificate of clean industry” in recog-
nition of full compliance with environmental 
regulations. 

Contractors are a key part of the  
Endeavour team 

Conveying ore to the 
crushing circuit 

Production (cont) 

Drilling at the face with the Jumbo 
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Finances 
 
In 2005, Endeavour completed a CA$14.4 million bought 
deal private placement comprised of 6 million units 
priced at CA$ 2.40 per unit. Each unit consisted of one 
common share and one half or purchased warrant each 
fall warrant entitling the holder to purchase an addi-
tional common share at 2.90 within a 2 year periods. The 
exercise of warrants also raised a further CA$5.7 million 
so that by year-en, Endeavour held CA$18.5 million in 
cash and equivalents. 
 
 

Plans 
 
The Phase 1 growth plan calls for a US $10 mil-
lion investment over 3 years to expand resources 
to 30-40 million oz. silver and production to 3-4 
million oz. silver per year, just to fill the existing 
capacity of the plant. In 2006, the Company’s 
goals are to raise production to at least 2.0 mil-
lion oz silver and resources to more than 25 mil-
lion oz silver. 
 
Our Phase 2 growth plan envisions the acquisi-
tion and exploration of a dominant property 
holding throughout the Guanacevi district in or-
der to outline enough new resources to justify a 
50% plant expansion to 5-6 million oz. per year.  
 
Endeavour’s Phase 3 growth entails further ac-
quisitions of attractive silver mines in Mexico, 
partly through our strategic alliance with Indus-
trias Penoles, the largest mining company in 
Mexico.  Endeavour’s exploration and mining activities are di-

rected so as to minimize any potential negative impacts 
on the environment. For instance, the Company insti-
tuted a program of reforestation to help nature recover 
from any damage caused by road construction for explo-
ration drilling. A garden nursery was established and 
over 4000 pine seedlings were planted in 2005 alone. Re-
forestation generates important benefits for the forests: 
protection of soil, retention of water, landscape esthetics, 
increased oxygen and reduced risk of forest fire. 

Environment 

Endeavour taking care of the 
environment 
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KPMG  LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Box 10426, 777 Dunsmuir Street 
Vancouver BC V7Y 1K3 
Canada 

 Telephone (604) 691-3000 
Telefax      (604) 691-3031 
www.kpmg.ca 

 
AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

 
 

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Endeavour Silver Corp. as at December 31, 2005 and 
February 28, 2005 and the consolidated statements of operations and deficit and cash flows for the ten 
month period ended December 31, 2005 and the years ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004.  
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to ex-
press an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. 

 
               In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
               position of the Company as at December 31, 2005 and February 28, 2005 and the results of its operations 
               and its cash flows for the ten month period ended December 31, 2005 and the years ended February 28, 
               2005 and February 29, 2004 in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
 
 
               KPMG LLP     (signed) 
 

               Chartered Accountants 

 
               Vancouver, Canada 
               April 21, 2006, except for Note 5(b)(iv) which is as of April 24, 2006 
 
             
 

 
 KPMG LLP, a Canadian owned limited liability partnership established under the laws of Ontario,  
Is the Canadian member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss non operating association. 
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Approved on behalf of the Board 

 
 
/s/            Bradford Cooke                                                                     /s/            Godfrey Walton 
                                                                                                                                                                              
                 
Director                                                                                                  Director 
 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                                                                                                
                                                                                                               (expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 

Financial Statements 

December 31, February 28,
Notes 2005 2005

ASSETS

CURRENT
Cash and cash equivalents 18,561$       4,958$         
Receivables and prepaids 4 1,739           714              

20,300         5,672           

NON-CURRENT
Due from related parties 4 and 7(b) 5,688           365              
Buildings and equipment 3 287              102              
Mineral properties 4 4,125           5,107           

10,100         5,574           

30,400$       11,246$       

LIABILITIES

CURRENT
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,343$         412$            

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital 5(a) 39,706         16,708         
Contributed surplus 5(c) 2,558           1,664           
Deficit (13,207)        (7,538)          

29,057         10,834         

30,400$       11,246$       

Nature of operations 1
Commitments and contingencies 4
Subsequent events 4(a) and (b), and 5

Refer to the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Refer to the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND DEFICIT 
 
                                                                                               (expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts) 

Ten Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, February 28, February 29,

Notes 2005 2005 2004

EXPENSES
Accounting and legal 269$                  253$            42$              
Amortization 20                      5                  -                   
Corporate development 97                      303              311              
Employees and directors remuneration 623                    309              -                   
Financing -                        -                   2                  
Foreign exchange 415                    (75)               3                  
Management and consulting 412                    149              43                
Office and sundry 7(c) 354                    97                29                
Regulatory 78                      28                20                
Shareholder relations 588                    199              63                
Stock-based compensation 5(d) 1,372                 1,499           211              
Travel 227                    82                4                  

Loss before the undernoted (4,455)               (2,849)          (728)             

Loss from option interests in mineral properties 4(b) (1,353)               -                   -                   
Royalty income, net 4(a) -                        222              -                   
Interest income 139                    105              -                   
Write-off of mineral properties 4 -                        (43)               (51)               

LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (5,669)               (2,565)          (779)             
Deficit, beginning of the period (7,538)               (4,973)          (4,194)          

DEFICIT, END OF PERIOD (13,207)$          (7,538)$        (4,973)$        

Basic and diluted loss per share (0.23)$              (0.15)$          (0.11)$          

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 24,518,980                 17,664,000          6,994,323            
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Refer to the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
                                                                                                               (expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars) 

Ten Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, February 28, February 29,

2005 2005 2004

CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED FOR):

OPERATIONS
Loss for the period (5,669)$             (2,565)$        (779)$           
Items not affecting cash:

Amortization 20                      5                  -                   
Stock-based compensation 1,372                 1,499           211              
Write-off of mineral properties -                        43                51                

(4,277)               (1,018)          (517)             
Net changes in non-cash working capital items:

Receivables and prepaids (1,025)               (658)             (49)               
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 931                    356              25                

(4,371)               (1,320)          (541)             

FINANCING
Issuance of common shares, net of issue costs 20,529               11,210         1,098           
Loans payable -                        -                   (26)               

20,529               11,210         1,072           

INVESTMENTS
Acquisition of buildings and equipment (101)                  (110)             -                   
Acquisition and exploration of mineral properties (605)                  (4,985)          (20)               
Due from related party (Note 7) (1,849)               (380)             14                
Advance for acquisition -                        -                   (133)             

(2,555)               (5,475)          (139)             

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 13,603               4,415           392              

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 4,958                 543              151              

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD 18,561$             4,958$         543$            

Supplemental disclosure with respect to cash flows (Note 6)
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1.             NATURE OF OPERATIONS 
 

Endeavour Silver Corp. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia on March 11, 1981 
and its principal business activities are the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties. 
 
In March 2005, the Company changed its fiscal year-end from February 28 to December 31.  During the transition year, the Com-
pany’s financial position is as at December 31, 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows are for the period from March 
1, 2005 to December 31, 2005. 
 
The Company has acquired interests in mineral properties and has not yet determined whether these properties contain ore reserves 
that are economically recoverable.  The recoverability of amounts capitalized for mineral properties is dependent upon the existence 
of economically recoverable reserves in its mineral properties, the ability of the Company to arrange appropriate financing to com-
plete the development of its properties, confirmation of the Company’s interest in the underlying properties, the receipt of necessary 
permitting and upon future profitable production or proceeds from the disposition of these interests. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes the realization of assets and liquidation of 
liabilities in the normal course of business.  The Company has incurred significant operating losses to date.  At December 31, 2005, 
the Company had working capital of $18,957,000, which is expected to be sufficient to fund its operations in the next fiscal year.  
Management recognizes that the Company may need to generate additional financial resources in order to meet its planned business 
objectives.  The Company has financed its activities principally by the sale of equity securities (Note 5(b)(iv)).  The Company’s abil-
ity to continue as a going concern may be dependent on the continued financial support from its shareholders and other related parties, 
the ability of the Company to raise equity financing, and the attainment of profitable operations.  However, there can be no assurances 
that the Company will continue to obtain adequate additional financing and/or achieve profitability or positive cash flows.  Further-
more, failure to continue as a going concern would require that the Company’s assets and liabilities be restated on a liquidation basis 
which would differ significantly from the going concern basis. 

 
 
2.             SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
(a)            Basis of presentation 
 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.  These consoli-
dated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.  All significant intercompany 
transactions and balances have been eliminated. 
 

(b)           Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits in banks and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of ninety days or less. 
 

(c)        Buildings and equipment 
 
Buildings and equipment are recorded at cost and are amortized using the straight-line method at rates varying from 5% to 30% annu-
ally. 
 

(d)           Mineral properties 
 

Amounts shown as mineral properties have been capitalized on an area of interest basis and include direct costs of acquiring, main-
taining and exploring properties, the costs of structures and equipment which are employed directly in the exploration process and 
other direct costs related to specific properties.  All other costs, including administrative overhead, are expensed as incurred. 

 
 
 
 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004    
                                         
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

2.             SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES     (continued) 
 

(d)           Mineral properties     (continued) 
 
Management periodically reviews the carrying value of its mineral properties with internal and external mining related professionals.  
A decision to abandon, reduce or expand a specific project is based upon many factors including general and specific assessments of 
reserves, anticipated future prices, anticipated future costs of exploring, developing and operating a producing mine, expiration term 
and ongoing expense of maintaining leased mineral properties and the general likelihood that the Company will continue exploration.  
The Company does not set a pre-determined holding period for properties with unproven reserves.  However, properties which have 
not demonstrated suitable mineral concentrations at the conclusion of each phase of an exploration program are re-evaluated to deter-
mine if future exploration is warranted and their carrying values are appropriate. 
 
If any area of interest is abandoned or it is determined that its carrying value cannot be supported by future production or sale, the 
related costs are charged against operations in the period of abandonment or determination that the carrying value exceeds its fair 
value.  The amounts recorded as mineral properties represent costs incurred to date and do not necessarily reflect present or future 
values. 

 
The accumulated costs of mineral properties that are developed to the stage of commercial production will be amortized using the 
units of production basis. 

 
(e)            Share capital 
 

Common shares issued for consideration other than cash are valued based on their market value over a reasonable period before and 
after the date of the agreement to issue shares was reached and announced. 

 
(f)            Stock-based compensation 
 

The Company has a share option plan which is described in Note 5(d).  The Company records all stock-based compensation for op-
tions using the fair value method.  Under the fair value method, stock-based payments are measured at the fair value of the considera-
tion received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued or liabilities incurred, whichever is more reliably measurable, and are 
charged to operations over the vesting period.  The offset is credited to contributed surplus.  Consideration received on the exercise of 
stock options is recorded as share capital and the related contributed surplus is transferred to share capital. 
 

(g)            Income taxes 
 

The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes.  Under this method, future tax assets and liabili-
ties are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of 
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and losses carried forward.  Future tax assets and liabilities are measured 
using substantively enacted or enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences 
are expected to be recovered or settled.  The effect on future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income 
in the period that includes the substantive enactment date.  Future tax assets are recognized to the extent that they are considered more 
likely than not to be realized.  The valuation of future income tax assets is adjusted, if necessary, by the use of a valuation allowance 
to reflect the estimated realizable amount. 
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2.             SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES     (continued) 
 

(h)           Asset retirement obligations 

 

During the year ended February 28, 2005, the Company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Hand-
book Section 3110 “Asset Retirement Obligations” (“HB 3110”).  This new standard recognizes statutory, contractual or other legal 
obligations related to the retirement of tangible long-lived assets when such obligations are incurred, if a reasonable estimate of fair 
value can be made.  These obligations are measured initially at fair value and the resulting costs capitalized to the carrying value of 
the related asset.  In subsequent periods, the liability is adjusted for any changes in the amount or timing and for the accretion of dis-
counted underlying future cash flows.  The capitalized asset retirement cost is amortized to operations over the life of the asset. 

 

Prior to the adoption of HB 3110, the Company had accounted for reclamation and closure costs by accruing an amount associated 
with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets as a charge to operations over the life of the asset.  The Company adopted HB 3110 
retroactively with a restatement of prior periods presented.  However, the adoption of HB 3110 resulted in no changes to amounts 
previously presented. 

 
(i)         Loss per share 
 

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing the loss available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the period.  For all periods presented, loss available to common shareholders equals the reported loss.  The Com-
pany uses the treasury stock method for calculating diluted earnings per share.  Under the treasury stock method, the weighted aver-
age number of common shares outstanding used for the calculation of diluted earnings per share assumes that the proceeds to be re-
ceived on the exercise of dilutive share options and warrants are used to repurchase common shares at the average market price dur-
ing the year.  In the Company’s case, diluted loss per share presented is the same as basic loss per share as the effect of outstanding 
options and warrants in the loss per share calculation would be anti-dilutive. 

 
(j)        Foreign currency translation 
 

The Company uses the Canadian dollar as its reporting currency, and accounts denominated in currencies other than the Canadian 
dollar have been translated as follows: 
 

                  Revenue and expense items at the rate of exchange in effect on the transaction date; 
              Non-monetary assets and liabilities at historical exchange rates, unless such items are carried at market, in which case they 

are translated at the exchange rate in effect on the balance sheet date;  and 
              Monetary assets and liabilities at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. 

 
Exchange gains and losses are recorded in the statement of operations in the period in which they occur. 

 
(k)           Use of estimates 

 
                The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili-

ties and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period.  Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to impairment of mineral 
properties, determination of asset retirement obligations, valuation allowances for future income tax assets, and assumptions used in 
determining the fair value of non-cash stock-based compensation.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
 
 
 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 
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2.             SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES     (continued) 
 
(l)         Fair value of financial instruments 
 
                The fair values of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate 

their carrying values due to their short terms to maturity.  It is not practicable to determine the fair values of amounts due from related 
parties due to their related party nature and the absence of a secondary market for such instruments. 

 
(m)          Variable interest entities 
 

Effective March 1, 2005, the Company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Accounting Guideline 15, 
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" ("AcG15") on a prospective basis.  AcG15 prescribes the application of consolidation 
principles for entities that meet the definition of a variable interest entity (“VIE”).  An enterprise holding other than a voting interest 
in a VIE could, subject to certain conditions, be required to consolidate the VIE if it is considered its primary beneficiary whereby it 
would absorb the majority of the VIE’s expected losses, receive the majority of its expected residual returns, or both.  The adoption of 
this new standard had no effect on the consolidated financial statements as the Company does not have any VIE’s. 

 
(n)           Comparative figures 

 
Certain of the prior periods’ comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current year. 

 

3.             BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

December 31, 2005 February 28, 2005
Accumulated Net book Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value Cost amortization value
Buildings 24$            1$                23$             24$            -$                24$             
Machinery and equipment 134            6                  128             12              -                  12               
Transportation and vehicles 131            17                114             66              7                  59               
Office equipment 25              3                  22               7                -                  7                 

314$          27$              287$           109$          7$                102$           
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4.             MINERAL PROPERTIES 
 

The Company’s mineral properties are comprised of properties located in Mexico.  Expenditures incurred on mineral properties dur-
ing the periods ended December 31, 2005, February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 are as follows: 

The Company allocated approximately $3.5 million in previously incurred exploration and development costs related to its option interest in 
Minera Santa Cruz to Minera Santa Cruz (Note 7(b)). 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

Otish
Santa Cruz El Taco San Jose Mountain
(Mexico) (Mexico) (Mexico) (Canada) Total

Balance, February 28, 2003 -$               -$               -$               51$            51$            

Additions during the year:
Acquisition costs -                 15              -                 -                 15              
Exploration costs:

Assays and surveys -                 6                8                -                 14              

Mineral properties written-off -                 -                 -                 (51)             (51)             

Balance, February 29, 2004 -                 21              8                -                 29              

Additions during the year:
Acquisition costs 3,865         -                 13              -                 3,878         
Exploration costs:

Assays and surveys 52              -                 1                -                 53              
Drilling 619            -                 -                 -                 619            
Field supplies 271            -                 -                 -                 271            
Geologists and consultants 230            -                 -                 -                 230            
Repair, maintenance and sundry 18              -                 -                 -                 18              
Transportation 52              -                 -                 -                 52              

Mineral properties written-off -                 (21)             (22)             -                 (43)             

Balance, February 28, 2005 5,107         -                 -                 -                 5,107         

Additions during the period:
Acquisition costs 1,948         -                 -                 -                 1,948         
Exploration costs:

Assays and surveys 6                -                 -                 -                 6                
Drilling 493            -                 -                 -                 493            
Field supplies 11              -                 -                 -                 11              
Geologists and consultants 4                -                 -                 -                 4                
Roads and drill pads 30              -                 -                 -                 30              

Mineral properties allocated to option interests (3,474)        -                 -                 -                 (3,474)        

Balance, December 31, 2005 4,125$       -$               -$               -$               4,125$       
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4.             MINERAL PROPERTIES     (continued) 
 

(a)            Guanacevi properties and plant (Durango, Mexico) 
 

In May 2004, the Company entered into option agreements to acquire a 100% interest in the producing Santa Cruz silver-gold mine, 
certain mining concessions and the Guanacevi mineral processing plant, all located in Durango, Mexico.  In February 2004, the Com-
pany advanced US$100,000 to the vendors in connection with these agreements. 
 
The option agreement provides that the acquisition of the mine will be accomplished through the acquisition of all the issued and out-
standing shares of Minera Santa Cruz y Garibaldi S.A. de C.V. (“Minera Santa Cruz”).  As at December 31, 2005, the Company made 
advance payments totalling $1,097,773 (US$852,143).  Subsequent to December 31, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition of 
51% of the outstanding shares of Minera Santa Cruz on completion of initial payments totalling US$1,275,714.  The remaining 49% 
of the shares of Minera Santa Cruz can be acquired by January 28, 2008 through annual payments totalling US$1,275,716.  On exer-
cise of the option and completion of the acquisition, it is anticipated that substantially all of the purchase price of the shares of Minera 
Santa Cruz will be allocated to the mineral property. 
 
In May 2004, the Company also entered into an option agreement to acquire mining concessions from Minera Santa Cruz for a total 
cost of US$448,571.  To February 28, 2005, the Company made advance payments totalling $558,548 (US$428,571), and during the 
period ended December 31, 2005, a further advance payment of US$5,000 was made.  The Company acquired a 51% beneficial own-
ership interest in the mining concessions on January 28, 2006 on completion of initial payments totalling US$438,571.  The remain-
ing 49% beneficial ownership interest in the mining concessions can be acquired by January 28, 2008 through annual payments total-
ling US$10,000. 
 
Also in May 2004, the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire a processing plant from an unrelated Mexican company 
for a total cost of US$4,000,000.  To December 31, 2005, the Company made advance payments totalling $2,208,429 (US
$1,714,286).  The Company acquired a 51% beneficial ownership interest in these assets on January 28, 2006 on completion of initial 
payments totalling US$2,285,715.  The remaining 49% beneficial ownership interest in the processing plant can be acquired by Janu-
ary 28, 2008 through annual payments totalling US$1,714,285. 
 
In addition to the above payments, the Company was committed to spend US$1,000,000 on exploration and development of the Santa 
Cruz property on or before May 17, 2005, which commitment was met by the Company. 
 
Pursuant to a May 2004 loan agreement, the Company agreed to loan up to US$425,000 to Minera Santa Cruz for development of an 
access ramp at the Santa Cruz mine.  Unpaid amounts on the loan as at January 28, 2005 bore interest at 9%, were secured by certain 
mining concessions held by Minera Santa Cruz, and were to be repaid from the proceeds of certain minerals produced.  At February 
28, 2005, the loan balance due from Minera Santa Cruz was US$26,921, which included accrued interest of US$1,921, and the loan, 
including accrued interest, was repaid in full during the period ended December 31, 2005.  Furthermore, pursuant to the loan agree-
ment, the Company also earned a 25% net profits royalty from ore mined by Minera Santa Cruz from the related mining concessions 
up to January 28, 2005. 
 
As the above agreements were options, the Company, but not the vendors, had the right to cancel the above agreements at any time.  
However, if cancellation occurred at any time before January 28, 2006, the Company would forfeit any advance payments already 
made to the vendors, and would relinquish any rights to the shares of Minera Santa Cruz and the interests in the processing plant and 
mining concessions.  On January 28, 2006, the Company made payments totaling US$1,000,000, thereby converting its 51% option 
interest into a fully vested 51% interests in Minera Santa Cruz and in the processing plant. 
 
 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 
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4.             MINERAL PROPERTIES     (continued) 
 

(a)            Guanacevi properties and plant (Durango, Mexico)     (continued) 
 
In June 2005, the Company acquired nine silver mining properties in the Guanacevi district, Durango, Mexico, from Industrias 
Peñoles S.A. de C.V. (“Peñoles”).  Six of these properties form part of the producing Santa Cruz silver mine.  This transaction effec-
tively allows the Company to acquire the outright ownership of the six mineral concessions as well as a 4.5% net proceeds royalty 
from Peñoles.  The Company will be required to send all mineral production from these properties to the Peñoles smelter in Torreon, 
Mexico, for smelting and refining.  Peñoles will retain a 3% net proceeds royalty on future production after deduction of all shipping 
and smelting costs, including taxes and penalties if any.  The Company has also formed a strategic alliance with Peñoles to acquire 
additional mining properties in Mexico.  Peñoles has agreed to provide the Company with access to information on its portfolio of 
mineral concessions throughout Mexico.  On each additional Peñoles property made available to the Company to acquire, a purchase 
price may be negotiated, payable in common shares of the Company.  If the Company acquires additional properties from third parties 
introduced by Peñoles, the Company will pay Peñoles a 5% fee on the cash purchase price, also payable in common shares of the 
Company.  If Peñoles acquires property from a third party introduced by the Company, Peñoles will pay the Company a 5% fee on 
the cash purchase price.  In compensation for the nine mining properties acquired and certain mining equipment located thereon and 
the formation of the strategic alliance, the Company issued 1,000,000 units to Peñoles in July 2005;  each unit consisted of one com-
mon share and one warrant to purchase an additional common share at $2.10 until July 22, 2006 and thereafter at $2.30 until July 22, 
2007 (Notes 5(a) and (e)).  The fair value of the warrants was determined to be $260,000 which was included in mineral properties;  
the fair value was based on an expected stock price volatility of 54.45%, expected life of 1 year and an estimated risk-free rate of 
1.28%. 
 
In July 2005, the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in two silver properties, Porvenir Dos and La 
Sultana, in the Guanacevi District, Durango, Mexico, for payments totalling US$137,500 of which US$37,500 was paid during the 
period ended December 31, 2005, and the balance of US$100,000 is payable on December 30, 2006. 
 
In August 2005, the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in four silver properties, La Prieta, El 
Aguaje de Arriba, Ampliacion El Aguaje de Arriba and La Plata, in the Guanacevi District, Durango, Mexico, for US$100,000 of 
which US$15,000 had been paid during the period ended December 31, 2005 and US$15,000 was paid subsequent to December 31, 
2005 and the balance of US$70,000 is payable on August 5, 2007. 
 
In October 2005, the Company acquired a mining lease from Minera Tayahua, S.A. de C.V., on the El Porvenir property, Guanacevi 
district, Durango, Mexico.  Under the lease agreement, the Company holds the exclusive right to mine the El Porvenir property for a 
5-year period, which can be extended for another 5 years, by mutual agreement.  The Company has agreed to mine El Porvenir at the 
rate of between 9,000 tonnes and 27,000 tonnes per quarter and to pay a 3% net smelter royalty from production.  To maintain its 
rights, the Company must spend at least US$100,000 each quarter on all exploration, development and mining costs, and also must 
spend a further US$500,000 on exploration and exploitation costs by October 11, 2006. 
 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 
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4.             MINERAL PROPERTIES     (continued) 
 

(b)           Income (loss) from option interests in Mexican operations 
 
Revenues from the Company’s option interests in Minera Santa Cruz and the processing plant are recognized when the price is deter-
minable, metal products are delivered to the buyers (or in the case of ore processing when such services are rendered), title and risk of 
ownership have transferred to the buyers, and collectability is reasonably assured. 
 
For the period ended December 31, 2005, losses from Mexican operations from the Company’s 51% option interests are pursuant to 
the agreements executed in May 2004 whereby the Company has a 51% interest in any profits or losses and are determined as fol-
lows: 

Costs of operations include amortization, depletion and depreciation of acquisition costs, exploration expenditures and mine 
development costs, and also include allocation of expenses incurred by Endeavour Silver Corp. 

 

(c)            El Taco property (Sonora, Mexico) 
 

In August 2003, the Company entered into an option agreement for the El Taco property located in Sonora, Mexico.  The Company 
had the option to earn a 100% interest in the property by making cash payments of US$100,000 and issuing 200,000 common shares 
over a 4 year period, subject to a 2% net smelter return royalty.  In fiscal 2004, the Company paid US$5,000 and issued 25,000 com-
mon shares to the optionor.  The Company subsequently terminated this option agreement and accordingly, deferred mineral property 
costs of $21,569 were written off in the fiscal year ended February 28, 2005. 

 
(d)           San Jose property (Sinaloa, Mexico) 
 

In July 2003, the Company entered an agreement to acquire a 100% interest in the San Jose property located in Sinaloa, Mexico, for 
cash payments of US$300,000 over a four year period.  In March 2004, the Company made a US$10,000 option payment.  The Com-
pany subsequently terminated this option agreement and accordingly, deferred mineral property costs of $22,004 were written off in 
the fiscal year ended February 28, 2005. 

 
(e)            Otish Mountain properties (Quebec, Canada) 

 
Pursuant to an agreement dated June 20, 2002, the Company acquired a 50% interest in two properties located in the Mistassini-Otish 
area of northern Quebec.  In consideration, the Company paid $31,000 and issued 150,000 common shares to the vendor in fiscal 
2003.  Subsequent to the transaction, the vendor became President and a director of the Company.  During fiscal 2004, the Company 
determined that it would no longer pursue the property and accordingly, wrote-off the $51,100 of costs incurred on the property. 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

Minera Processing
Santa Cruz Plant Total

Revenues from operations 5,798$             2,463$             
Costs of operations * (8,229)              (2,930)              
Loss before allocation (2,431)              (467)                 
Allocation to Mexican interests in operations 1,316               229                  
Loss from 51% option interests (1,115)$            (238)$               (1,353)$            
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4.             MINERAL PROPERTIES     (continued) 
 

(f)            Mineral property contingencies 
 
Management believes the Company has diligently investigated rights of ownership of all of the mineral properties to a level which is 
acceptable by prevailing industry standards with respect to the current stage of development of each property in which it has an inter-
est and, to the best of its knowledge, all agreements relating to such ownership rights are in good standing.  However, all properties 
may be subject to prior claims, agreements or transfers, and rights of ownership may be affected by undetected defects. 

 
 
5.             SHARE CAPITAL 
 
(a)            Authorized and issued 
 

Authorized share capital consists of unlimited common shares without par value. 
 
As at December 31, 2005 and February 28, 2005, a total of 93,750 common shares are held in escrow, the release of which is subject 
to regulatory approval. 
 
Details of shares issued are as follows: 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

Number
of Shares Amount

Balance, February 28, 2003 6,191,550             4,346$                

Issued during the year:
For cash from private placement (Note 5(b)(i)) 3,050,000             873                     
From exercise of share purchase options 165,000 30                       
For cash from exercise of warrants 1,700,000 204                     
For mineral property (Note 4(e)) 25,000 9                         

Balance, February 29, 2004 11,131,550           5,462                  

Issued during the year:
For cash from private placement (Note 5(b)(ii)), net of issue costs 7,264,719 10,699                
From exercise of share purchase options 419,000 112                     
For cash from exercise of warrants 2,058,000 435                     

Balance, February 28, 2005 20,873,269           16,708                

Issued during the period:
For cash from private placement (Note 5(b)(iii)), net of issue costs 6,000,000 13,354                
From exercise of share purchase options 793,000 1,792                  
For cash from exercise of warrants 3,700,061 6,122                  
For mineral property (Note 4(a)) 1,000,000 1,730                  

Balance, December 31, 2005 32,366,330 39,706$              
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5.             SHARE CAPITAL     (continued) 
 
(b)           Private placements 

 
(i)            In December 2003, the Company completed a private placement for 3,050,000 units at a price of $0.30 per unit.  Each unit 

consisted of one common share and one-half of one share purchase warrant.  Each whole warrant is exercisable to acquire 
one common share at an exercise price of $0.35 per share until October 6, 2005 (Note 5(e)). 

 
(ii)           In April 2004, the Company completed brokered and non-brokered private placements to raise a total of $9,916,000 to fi-

nance the acquisition of the Santa Cruz silver-gold mine and the Guanacevi processing plant (Note 4(a)).  The Company 
completed a brokered private placement for 5,022,500 units at $1.60 per unit for gross proceeds of $8,036,000.  Each unit 
consisted of one common share and one-half of one share purchase warrant, with each whole warrant giving the holder the 
right to purchase an additional common share at $2.00 per share until October 22, 2005 (Note 5(e)).  The Company also 
completed a non-brokered private placement for 1,175,000 units at the same price and the same terms as the brokered pri-
vate placement for an additional $1,880,000 in gross proceeds.  Share issuance costs consisted of finders’ fees of $90,000, 
agents’ fees of 25,000 corporate finance units (with the same terms as the units in the private placement), commission of 
$571,950, 19,219 agents’ units (with the same terms as the units in the private placement) and 602,700 agents’ warrants 
(with the same terms as the warrants in the private placement).  The 624,809 warrants issued to the agents have a fair value 
of $391,238 and have been recorded in share capital on a net basis. 

 
In February 2005, the Company completed brokered and non-brokered private placements to raise a total of $1,636,800.  
The Company completed a brokered private placement for 312,500 units at $1.60 per unit for gross proceeds of $500,000.  
Each unit consisted of one common share and one share purchase warrant, exercisable to acquire one common share at an 
exercise price of $2.10 until February 1, 2006 and $2.30 thereafter until February 1, 2007 (Note 5(e)).  The Company also 
completed a non-brokered private placement for 710,500 units at the same price and the same terms as the brokered private 
placement for an additional $1,136,800 in gross proceeds.  Share issuance costs consisted of agents’ fees of $37,500 and 
40,000 agents’ warrants (with the same terms as the warrants in the private placement).  The 40,000 warrants issued to the 
agent have a fair value of $22,000 and have been recorded in share capital on a net basis. 

 
(iii)          In October 2005, the Company completed a private placement for 6,000,000 units at $2.40 per unit for gross proceeds of 

$14.4 million.  Each unit is comprised of one common share and one-half of a common share purchase warrant.  Each 
whole share purchase warrant is exercisable to purchase one common share at an exercise price of $2.90 until October 5, 
2007 (Note 5(e)).  The underwriters received a cash commission of $936,000 and 450,000 agents’ warrants that have the 
same terms as the warrants in the private placement. 

 
(iv)          Subsequent to the period ended December 31, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with certain agents in a best 

efforts private placement offering of up to 5 million special warrants at $4.50 per special warrant for gross proceeds of up to 
$22.5 million.  An over-subscription option allowed for up to an additional 2 million special warrants for additional pro-
ceeds of $9 million.  On April 24, 2006, the Company closed the placement for 5.11 million special warrants, for gross pro-
ceeds of $22,995,000.  Each special warrant is comprised of one common share and one-half of a common share purchase 
warrant.  Each whole share purchase warrant will be exercisable to purchase one common share at a price of $5.25 until 
October 24, 2007.  The Company has agreed to file a short form offering prospectus qualifying the issuance of the common 
shares and warrants issuable on exercise of the special warrants.  In the event the Company fails to obtain receipts for a fi-
nal prospectus qualifying the common shares and common share purchase warrants issuable on the exercise of the special 
warrants on or before July 15, 2006, each special warrant will entitle the holder to acquire 1.1 common shares and 0.55 
common share purchase warrant.  In connection with this offering, the agents will receive a cash commission of 6% of the 
gross proceeds and broker warrants exercisable for common shares equal to 6% of the total special warrants placed.  The 
broker warrants have the same terms as the warrants in the private placement.  The Company has agreed to seek a condi-
tional listing for the share purchase warrants on the Toronto Stock Exchange. 
 
The issuance of the remaining 1.89 million special warrants is subject to shareholder and regulatory approvals, and would 
provide gross proceeds of $8,505,000 to the Company. 
 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 
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5.             SHARE CAPITAL     (continued) 
 
(c)            Contributed surplus 
 

 
(d)           Share purchase options 
 

Options to purchase common shares have been granted to directors, officers, employees and consultants pursuant to the Company’s 
stock option plan approved by the Company’s shareholders in fiscal 2004 at exercise prices determined by reference to the market 
value on the date of the grant.  Prior to August 2005, vesting periods were at the discretion of the Board of Directors but historically, 
options have vested immediately on the date of grant.  In August 2005, the Company adopted a stock option plan which allows for 
granting options to its directors, officers, employees and consultants to acquire up to 4,200,000 common shares, of which options for 
2,223,900 common shares were outstanding as at December 31, 2005.  The stock option plan had a vesting provision in which 25% is 
vested immediately and another 25% is vested in each of the next 6-month period, provided the Company continued as a Tier 2 issuer 
on the TSX Venture Exchange.  In February 2006, the Company graduated to a listing on the Toronto Stock Exchange, and the vest-
ing provisions were then subject to the discretion of its Board of Directors. 
 
The following table summarizes the status of the Company’s stock option plan as at December 31, 2005, February 28, 2005 and Feb-
ruary 29, 2004, and changes during the periods ended on those dates: 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

Balance at February 28, 2003 -$                       
Changes during the year:

Stock-based compensation (Note 5(d)) 211                    
Exercise of share purchase options (9)                       

Balance at February 29, 2004 202                    

Changes during the year:
Stock-based compensation (Note 5(d)) 1,499                 
Exercise of share purchase options (36)                     

Balance at February 28, 2005 1,665                 

Changes during the period:
Stock-based compensation (Note 5(d)) 1,371                 
Fair value of warrants issued for mineral properties 260                    
Exercise of share purchase options (738)                   

Balance at December 31, 2005 2,558$               

December 31, 2005 February 28, 2005 February 29, 2004
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average

Number exercise Number exercise Number exercise
of Shares price of Shares price of Shares price

Outstanding, beginning of period 1,871,000       $1.33 860,000          $0.37 275,000          $0.10
Granted 1,155,900       $2.40 1,480,000       $1.57 750,000          $0.42
Exercised (793,000)         $1.33 (419,000)         $0.18 (165,000)         $0.13
Cancelled (10,000)           $2.52 (50,000)           $1.41 -                      -            

Outstanding, end of period 2,223,900       $1.88 1,871,000       $1.33 860,000          $0.37

Options exercisable at period-end 1,611,900       1,871,000       860,000          
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5.             SHARE CAPITAL     (continued) 
 
(d)           Share purchase options     (continued) 
 

The following tables summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005: 

During the period ended December 31, 2005, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of $1,371,604 (February 
28, 2005 - $1,498,700 and February 29, 2004 - $210,900) based on the fair value of options granted. 

 
Option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected price volatility.  Changes in the sub-
jective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, and therefore the existing models do not necessarily provide a 
reliable single measure of the fair value of the Company’s stock options. 

 
The weighted average fair values of stock options granted and the assumptions used to calculate compensation expense have been 
estimated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model with the following assumptions: 

 

In February 2006, the Company granted stock options to employees and consultants to acquire up to 555,000 common shares at an 
exercise price of $2.55 per share with an expiry date of January 25, 2011.  In March 2006, the Company granted stock options to a 
consultant to acquire up to 150,000 common shares at an exercise price of $3.90 per share with an expiry date of March 14, 2007. 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted

Number Average Weighted Number Weighted
Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average

Price as at Contractual Life Exercise as at Exercise
Intervals Dec 31, 2005 (Number of Years) Prices Dec 31, 2005 Prices

$0.50 - $0.99 260,000 3.1 $0.66 260,000 $0.66
$1.00 - $1.49 200,000 0.9 $1.39 200,000 $1.39
$1.50 - $1.99 618,000 3.5 $1.60 618,000 $1.60
$2.00 - $2.49 816,000 4.8 $2.35 204,000 $2.35
$2.50 - $2.99 329,900 4.3 $2.52 329,900 $2.52

2,223,900 3.8 $1.88 1,611,900 $1.71

Ten Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2005 February 28, 2005 February 29, 2004

Weighted average fair value of
options granted during the year $1.72 $1.01 $0.27

Risk-free interest rate 2.30% 2.51% 3.13%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatility 105% 104% 121%
Expected option life in years 4 3 2
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5.             SHARE CAPITAL     (continued) 
 

(e)            Warrants 
 

At December 31, 2005, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate 5,508,000 common shares as follows: 

At February 28, 2005, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate 5,553,559 common shares as follows: 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

Exercise Oustanding at Oustanding at
Prices Expiry Dates February 28, 2005 Issued Exercised Expired December 31, 2005

$0.35 October 6, 2005 775,000             -                      (775,000)         -                   -                                 
$2.00 October 22, 2005 3,467,559          -                      (2,872,061)      (595,498)      -                                 
$2.00 October 28, 2005 248,000             -                      (48,000)           (200,000)      -                                 

$2.10 / February 1, 2006 /
$2.30 February 1, 2007 1,063,000          -                      (5,000)             -                   1,058,000                   

$2.10 / July 22, 2006 /
$2.30 July 22, 2007 -                         1,000,000       -                      -                   1,000,000                   

$2.90 October 5, 2007 -                         3,450,000       -                      -                   3,450,000                   

5,553,559                  4,450,000       (3,700,061)      (795,498)      5,508,000                   

Exercise Oustanding at Oustanding at
Prices Expiry Dates February 29, 2004 Issued Exercised Expired February 28, 2005

$0.12 November 29, 2004 1,300,000      -                      (1,300,000)      -                   -                                 
$0.35 October 6, 2005 1,525,000          -                      (750,000)         -                   775,000                      
$2.00 October 22, 2005 -                         3,475,559       (8,000)             -                   3,467,559                   
$2.00 October 28, 2005 -                         248,000          -                      -                   248,000                      

$2.10 / February 1, 2006 /
$2.30 February 1, 2007 -                         1,063,000       -                      -                   1,063,000                   

2,825,000                  4,786,559       (2,058,000)      -                   5,553,559                   
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5.             SHARE CAPITAL     (continued) 
 
(e)            Warrants     (continued) 

 
At February 29, 2004, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate 2,825,000 common shares as follows: 

(f)            Shares reserved for issuance 

6.             SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE WITH RESPECT TO CASH FLOWS 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

Exercise Oustanding at Oustanding at
Prices Expiry Dates February 28, 2003 Issued Exercised Expired February 29, 2004

$0.12 November 29, 2004 3,000,000          -                   (1,700,000)      -                   1,300,000                   
$0.35 October 6, 2005 -                             1,525,000    -                      -                   1,525,000                   

3,000,000                      1,525,000    (1,700,000)      -                   2,825,000                   

Number of Shares

Issued and outstanding, December 31, 2005 32,366,330
Stock options 2,223,900
Warrants 5,508,000

Fully diluted, December 31, 2005 40,098,230

Ten Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, February 28, February 29,

2005 2005 2004

Non-cash financing and investing activities:

Amortization included in mineral properties -$                          3$                 -$                  
Allocation of mineral properties to Minera Santa Cruz (Note 4) 3,474$                  -$                  -$                  
Advance on acquisition included in mineral properties (Note 4(a)) -$                          133$             -$                  
Shares issued on acquisition of mineral properties (Note 4(a)) 1,626$                  -$                  9$                  
Shares issued on acquisition of equipment (Note 4(a)) 104$                     -$                  -$                  
Fair value of stock options allocated to shares issued

on exercise of stock options 738$                     36$               9$                  
Fair value of warrants issued for mineral properties 260$                     -$                  -$                  

Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash paid during the period for:
Interest -$                          -$                  2$                  
Income taxes -$                          -$                  -$                  
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7.             RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company entered into the following transactions with related parties: 
 
(a)            As at December 31, 2005, nil amount was due from or to a company with certain common directors (February 28, 2005 - $6,861 due 

from a company with certain common directors).  Amounts due from (to) related parties represent amounts owed by (to) companies 
with certain common directors, which do not bear any interest and provide for no specific terms of repayment. 

 
(b)            As at December 31, 2005, a balance of $5,688,071 (February 28, 2005 - $358,424) was due from Minera Santa Cruz (Note 4(a)).  

This consists of the loan balance and accrued interest of $Nil (February 28, 2005- $33,151) (Note 4(a)), the net profits royalty on ore 
mined to January 28, 2005 (Note 4(a)) totalling $222,498, and advances and allocations to Minera Santa Cruz to fund exploration and 
mine development expenditures incurred by Minera Santa Cruz totalling $6,580,815 (February 28, 2005 - $102,775), less the Com-
pany’s $1,115,242 share (February 28, 2005 - $Nil) of the net losses of Minera Santa Cruz during the period.  The net profits royalty 
receivable and the exploration and mine development advances are unsecured, interest bearing and due on demand. 

 
(c)            Rent of $15,000 (February 28, 2005 - $18,000 and February 29, 2004 - $18,000) was incurred and paid to a company with certain 

common directors. 
 
(d)            The Otish Mountain properties were acquired in fiscal 2003 from a vendor who subsequently became a director of the Company 

(Note 4(e)). 
 
(e)            During fiscal 2003, the Company received two loans in the amount of $25,000 each to assist in the reactivation of the Company.  The 

loans bore interest at the rate of 9% per annum with repayment of principal and interest due on or before September 30, 2002.  One of 
the loans was received from a company controlled by a director of the Company.  This loan was repaid in full, with interest in the 
amount of $865, on October 30, 2002.  The other loan was repaid in December 2003 including interest of $3,480.  The lenders re-
ceived an aggregate of 100,000 common shares of the Company valued at $10,000 as a loan bonus. 

 

8.             INCOME TAXES 
 
              The reconciliation of the income tax provision computed at statutory rates to the reported income tax provision is as fol-

lows: 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

December 31, February 28, February 29,
2005 2005 2004

Canadian statutory tax rates 34.12% 35.62% 37.62%

Income tax benefit computed at Canadian statutory rates 1,934$             914$                293$                
Foreign tax rates different from statutory rate (170)                 5                      -                       
Temporary differences not recognized in year (271)                 50                    (136)                 
Permanent differences (803)                 (521)                 (79)                   
Unrecognized tax losses (690)                 (448)                 (78)                   

-$                     -$                     -$                     
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The tax effect of the temporary differences that gives rise to future tax assets as of December 31, 2005 and February 28, 2005 is pre-
sented below: 

8.             INCOME TAXES     (continued) 
 

As at December 31, 2005, the Company had available the following amounts for deduction against future Canadian earnings: 

The Company has not yet substantiated its Mexican tax attributes. 

9.             SEGMENT DISCLOSURES 
 

The Company has one operating segment, being the exploration and development of mineral properties.  All of the Company’s assets 
are located in Mexico and Canada (Note 4).  Segmented disclosures are as follows: 

As at December 31, 2005, all of the Company’s assets are located in Canada, except for mineral properties which are lo-
cated in Mexico.  For the period ended December 31, 2005, substantially all capital expenditures were incurred in Mexico. 

 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Ten Months Ended December 31, 2005, and Years Ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 
                 
                                        (tabular dollar amounts expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherwise stated, except per share amounts) 

December 31, February 28,
2005 2005

Future income tax assets:
Tax loss carryforwards 1,915$                    987$                       
Mineral properties 661                         690                         
Buildings and equipment 5                             5                             

Total future income tax assets 2,581                      1,682                      
Valuation allowance (2,581)                     (1,682)                     

Future income tax assets, net -$                            -$                            

Non-capital losses, expiring as follows:
2006 to 2009 -$                            
2010 117                         
2011 276                         
2012 to 2014 -                              
2015 2,876                      

3,269$                    

Capital losses 887$                       

Financing costs 1,392$                    

December 31, 2005
Canada Mexico Total

Cash 18,256$             305$                  18,561$             
Receivables and prepaids 34                      1,705                 1,739                 
Due from related parties -                         5,688                 5,688                 
Buildings and equipment -                         287                    287                    
Mineral properties -                         4,125                 4,125                 

Net loss 2,897                 2,772                 5,669                 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

CAUTION – FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
Certain statements contained herein regarding the Company and its operations constitute “forward-looking statements” within the 
meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  All statements that are not historical facts, in-
cluding without limitation statements regarding future estimates, plans, objectives, assumptions or expectations of future per-
formance, are “forward-looking statements”.  We caution you that such “forward looking statements” involve known and un-
known risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and future events to differ materially from those anticipated in such 
statements.  Such risks and uncertainties include fluctuations in precious metal prices, unpredictable results of exploration activi-
ties, uncertainties inherent in the estimation of mineral reserves and resources, fluctuations in the costs of goods and services, 
problems associated with exploration and mining operations, changes in legal, social or political conditions in the jurisdictions 
where the Company operates, lack of appropriate funding and other risk factors, as discussed in the Company’s filings with Ca-
nadian and American Securities regulatory agencies.  The Company expressly disclaims any obligation to update any forward-
looking statements. 
 
 
1.0         Preliminary Information 
 
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) of Endeavour Silver Corp. (the “Company”) should be read in 
conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2005 and the 
audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004, which are available at the 
SEDAR website at www.sedar.com. 
 
In March 2005, the Company changed its fiscal year end from February 28 to December 31.  During the transition year, the fiscal 
period is for the ten-month period from March 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005. 
 
All financial information in this MD&A is prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles 
(“CAD GAAP”), and all dollar amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise indicated. 
 
All information contained in the MD&A is as of April 21, 2006 unless otherwise indicated. 
 
 
1.1         Background 
 
The Company is engaged in the evaluation, acquisition, exploration, development and exploitation of mineral properties.  The 
business philosophy of the Company has historically been to identify, explore and develop mineral targets.  The Company fi-
nanced its operating and exploration activities principally by the issuance of common shares.  In fiscal year ended February 28, 
2005, the Company acquired an option to purchase a high grade silver mine in Mexico. 
 
Silver markets continued to show strength as the cumulative average increased from US$4.8758 per ounce in 2003 to US$6.6711 
in 2004, to US$7.3164 in 2005 and then to US$10.1789 from January 2006 to late April 2006.  Silver prices reached new highs 
of over US$14 in mid-April 2006. 
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In May 2004, the Company signed formal option agreements to acquire up to a 100% interest in the producing Santa Cruz silver-
gold mine, certain other mining concessions and the Guanacevi mineral processing plant (collectively, the “Guanacevi Project”) 
in Durango, Mexico.  Terms of the agreement gave the Company the option to acquire a 51% interest in these operating assets by 
paying a total of US$3 million to the vendors and incurring US$1 million in mine exploration and development within one year.  
The balance of the 49% interest can be earned by paying a further US$4 million over the period to January 2008.  To complete 
the acquisition of the initial 51% interest, payments totalling US$1 million had to be made by January 28, 2006.  As at December 
31, 2005, the Company had paid the vendors US$3 million and invested in excess of $10 million in property acquisitions, mine 
exploration and development and capital assets. 
 
At January 28, 2006, the Company made payments totalling US$1 million thereby fully earning and vesting its 51% interests in 
the Guanacevi Project. 
 
 
1.2         Overall Performance 
 
 
The Guanacevi Project 
 
During the early part of the fiscal period ended December 31, 2005, the primary focus for the Guanacevi Project was surface 
drilling and the accelerated underground development of the North Porvenir mine, which forms part of the Guanacevi Project, to 
further outline mineralization and to prepare it for production during the period.  Over 1,000 metres of ramp access plus related 
crosscuts, sublevels and raises were completed in the first quarter when accelerated mine development was in progress.  In the 
second quarter ended August 31, 2005, the North Porvenir mine was able to accelerate production as a result of accelerated drill-
ing. 
 
The Santa Cruz mine was closed during the second quarter of the period to allow for operations to focus on the North Porvenir 
mine. 
 
An independent engineering audit was completed for the ore processing plant in early March 2005 which resulted in positive 
evaluations of its operations.  The ore processing plant currently operates well below capacity even when the North Porvenir 
mine was re-opened for mining. 
 
In May 2005, the Company confirmed an initial estimate of 935,000 oz silver resources in the Measured and Indicated categories 
and a further 3,839,000 oz silver resources in the Inferred category according to an independent National Instrument 43-101 (“NI 
43-101”) report dated May 5, 2005, as amended May 10, 2005 (“WGM Report”) and prepared by Velasquez Spring, PEng, who 
was the Qualified Person from Watts, Griffis and McOuat Limited (“WGM”) for the North Porvenir zone. 
 
During the period ended December 31, 2005, the Company continued with its aggressive expansion plans by the acquisitions of 
additional mining properties in the Guanacevi district. 
 
A major equity financing closed in the last quarter of the 2005 fiscal period, and further financing was provided from the exercise 
of warrants and options as the Company’s share price increased during the period. 
 
In the first quarter of 2006, the Company retained Range Consulting Group, LLC (“RCG”) to complete a review and/or update of 
mineral reserves and resources for the Porvenir Mine (North Porvenir and El Porvenir properties combined), Porvenir Dos and 
Deep Santa Cruz mineralized zones.  Their technical report entitled “Mineral Resource and Reserve Estimate, Guanacevi Project, 
Durango, Mexico” (“RCG Report”) and authored by A.E. Olson, MAusIMM, who is an independent Qualified Person under the 
definition by NI 43-101, was prepared in compliance with NI 43-101.  The technical report increased proven and probable min-
eral reserves from nil in 2005 to 3,481,200 oz silver in 2006.  Inferred mineral resources increased 178% from 3,839,000 oz sil-
ver in 2005 to 10,655,500 in 2006.  Total silver reserves and resources now exceed 14 million oz in the Guanacevi Project, which 
should provide an estimated mine life of 7 years assuming 100% conversion of resources to reserves. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 
                                                                                        For the Period Ended December 31, 2005  (expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted) 
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North Porvenir Mine 
 
During the first quarter ended May 31, 2005, the mine produced from low-grade ore, development muck and stockpiles as the 
Company continued to accelerate its mine development and exploration activities but by quarter end the North Porvenir mine had 
also accelerated production.  Monthly production averaged 98,330 oz silver during the second quarter ended August 31, 2005.  
The last four months of the fiscal period ended December 31, 2005 resulted in an increased monthly mine production which aver-
aged 95,800 oz silver. 
 
For the fiscal period ended December 31, 2005, about 90,693 tonnes were processed which produced 799,300 oz silver and 2,160 
oz gold and which have an average grade of 473 gpt silver and 0.97 gpt gold. 
 
In May 2005, WGM which was retained to audit and to validate the polygonal resource estimate by the Company for the North 
Porvenir zone, reported measured resources of 420,000 oz silver, indicated resources of 515,000 oz silver, and inferred resources 
of 3,839,000 oz silver.  The WGM Report was prepared in compliance with NI 43-101 and was estimated using a 335 gpt Ag cut-
off grade, a minimum 1.0 m mining width and a US$6.50 silver price.  Twenty-one surface drill holes, five underground cross-
cuts and 135 m of underground channel sampling within a 575 m strike length were utilized in the resource estimate but 155 m of 
that strike length were omitted as drilling was still in progress at that time in these areas.  The North Porvenir zone remained open 
at depth and to a certain extent along strike. 
 
In late March 2006, RCG completed a review and update of mineral reserves and resources for the Porvenir Mine (North Porve-
nir and El Porvenir properties combined).  In the RCG Report, mineral reserves were estimated by the manual method using the 
Company’s drill hole and underground sample data to March 15, 2006 as follows: 
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Silver Gold Silver Gold
Classification Tonnes (gpt) (gpt) Oz Oz (gpt) (oz)

Zone 1

Proven 18,403 426 0.64 252,100 379 470 278,251

Probable 26,293 425 0.63 359,300 533 468 396,077
Proven and Probable 44,696 426 0.63 611,400 912 468 674,328

Zone 1

Proven 75,793 645 0.93 1,571,700 2,266 701 1,707,660

Probable 63,386 637 0.92 1,298,100 1,875 692 1,410,600
Proven and Probable 139,179 641 0.93 2,869,800 4,141 697 3,118,260

All Zones Combined

Proven 94,196 602 0.87 1,823,800 2,645 656 1,985,911

Probable 89,679 575 0.83 1,657,400 2,408 627 1,806,677
Proven and Probable 183,875 589 0.93 3,481,200 5,053 642 3,792,588

Porvenir Mine Reserves
Ag Equivalent
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Reserves were based on a US$7 silver price, a US$427 gold price, minimum mining width of 1.0 metre, mine extraction rate of 
87%, mine dilution of 10% at 70 gpt silver, and cutoff grades of 404 gpt Ag for Zone 1 and 353 gpt Ag for Zones 2 and 3.  Silver 
equivalents were calculated as silver oz plus gold oz multiplied by the equivalence ratio (69 for Zone 1 and 60 for Zones 2 and 
3).  The equivalence ratio was calculated as the silver recovery/gold recovery multiplied by the silver net smelter return/gold net 
smelter return.  Net smelter return is the payable value minus the costs of freight, smelting, refining and royalties. 
 
The mineral resources were in addition to the reserves and were estimated by the polygonal method using drill hole data that met 
the minimum geologic width and cutoff grade, as follows: 

Santa Cruz Mine 

During the period ended December 31, 2005, a drilling and exploration program was implemented in various parts of the mine, 
including the Deep Santa Cruz zone, to locate and to define mineral resources.  Also the mine was closed temporarily to com-
plete shaft rehabilitation and mine development.  During the first quarter of 2006, an underground drill was moved to a second 
crosscut and additional mineralization was intersected in the Deep Santa Cruz zone. 
 
In May 2005, the WGM Report provided no resource estimates for the Deep Santa Cruz mine. 
 
In late March 2006, RCG completed a review of resources for Deep Santa Cruz.  In the RCG Report, mineral resources for 
Deep Santa Cruz were estimated by the polygonal method using drill hole data that met the minimum geologic width and cut-
off grade as follows: 
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Silver Gold Silver Gold
Vein Tonnes (gpt) (gpt) Oz Oz (gpt) (oz)

Shell A 18,879 653 0.59 396,400 358 689 418,240

Shell B 74,237 572 1.21 1,365,200 2,888 646 1,541,370

Shell C 46,916 542 1.07 817,500 1,614 607 915,950

Shell D 12,737 772 1.94 316,100 794 890 364,530

All Zones Combined 152,769 589 1.15 2,895,200 5,654 668 3,240,090

Deep Santa Cruz Inferred Resources
Ag Equivalent

Silver Gold Silver Gold
Classification Tonnes (gpt) (gpt) Oz Oz (gpt) (oz)

Zone 1 197,677 411 0.99 2,612,100 6,292 479 3,046,250

Zones 2 & 3 194,898 369 0.62 2,312,200 3,885 412 2,545,300

All Zones Combined 392,575 390 0.81 4,924,300 10,177 446 5,591,550

Porvenir Mine Inferred Resources
Ag Equivalent
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Resources were based on a minimum mining width of 1.0 m at a 200 gpt Ag cutoff grade without considering dilution or extrac-
tion rates.  Silver equivalents were calculated as the ratio of a US$427 gold price and a US$7 silver price (1:61).  Additional fac-
tors such as metal recoveries and net smelter returns will affect the silver equivalent calculation but are not yet known for the 
Deep Santa Cruz zone. 
 
The mine remains closed temporarily in 2006 as further underground drilling and development efforts are underway to expand 
the silver resources, to develop a mine plan, and to prepare the Deep Santa Cruz zone for production in 2007. 
 
 
Porvenir Dos Property 
 
The Porvenir Dos property is located adjacent to and northwest of the North Porvenir mine, and covers more than 1 km of pro-
spective strike length on the Santa Cruz vein.  The property is the fourth discovery of high-grade mineralization on the Com-
pany’s Guanacevi Project.  Exploration efforts on the property are ongoing. 
 
In March 2006, the RCG Report provided resource estimates for Porvenir Dos which were estimated by the polygonal method 
using drill hole data that met the minimum geologic width and cutoff grade as follows: 
 

Resources were based on a minimum mining width of 1.0 m at a 200 gpt Ag cutoff grade without considering dilution or extrac-
tion rates.  Silver equivalents were calculated as the ratio of a US$427 gold price and a US$7 silver price (1:61).  Additional fac-
tors such as metal recoveries and net smelter returns will affect the silver equivalent calculation but are not yet known for the 
Porvenir Dos zone. 
 
Guanacevi Processing Plant 
 
Summit Valley Equipment and Engineering Inc. was commissioned to conduct a comprehensive review of the plant, including 
the condition of all equipment, the capacity of each circuit and the efficiency of plant operations.  Some of its findings include a 
clean and well-maintained plant, brand name equipment and a well-trained and reliable work force.  The plant is fully permitted 
and operating complete with land ownership, offices, housing and all related infrastructure.  Although by February 2005, plant 
production had increased to 220 tpd, a significant increase from prior year, it was still operating at well below its design capacity. 
 
For the period ended December 31, 2005, a total 90,693 dry tonnes were processed by the plant with an average grade of 370 g/t 
Ag and 0.94 g/t Au, averaging 304 tpd, and with recoveries of 73.3% Ag and 77.9% Au.  The plant processed 14,446 tonnes from 
old tailings and 13,030 tonnes from ore milling during the period. 
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Silver Gold Silver Gold
Vein Tonnes (gpt) (gpt) Oz Oz (gpt) (oz)

Santa Cruz 170,017 407 0.84 2,224,700 4,592 458 2,504,800

Conglomerate 40,115 474 0.73 611,300 942 519 668,760
All Zones Combined 210,132 420 0.82 2,836,000 5,534 477 3,173,560

Porvenir Dos Inferred Resources
Ag Equivalent
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Other Matters 
 
In June 2005, the Company acquired nine silver mining properties in the Guanacevi district, Durango, Mexico, from Industrias 
Peñoles S.A. de C.V. (“Peñoles”).  Six of these properties form part of the producing Santa Cruz silver mine in which the Com-
pany has earned and fully vested 51% interests in the mining lease and has the option to acquire the remaining 49% interest.  This 
transaction effectively allows the Company’s wholly owned Mexican subsidiary, Minera Plata Adelante SA de CV, (“Adelante”) 
to acquire the outright ownership of the six mineral concessions as well as a 4.5% net proceeds royalty from Peñoles’ wholly 
owned Mexican subsidiary, Minera Capela S.A. de C.V. (“Capela”).  Adelante will be required to send all mineral production 
from these properties to the Peñoles smelter in Torreon, Mexico, for smelting and refining.  Capela will retain a 3% net proceeds 
royalty on future production after deduction of all processing, shipping and smelting costs, including taxes and penalties if any.  
The Company has also formed a strategic alliance with Peñoles to acquire additional mining properties in Mexico.  Peñoles has 
agreed to provide the Company with access to information on its portfolio of mineral concessions throughout Mexico.  On each 
additional Peñoles property made available to the Company to acquire, a purchase price may be negotiated, payable in common 
shares of the Company.  If the Company acquires additional properties from third parties introduced by Peñoles, the Company 
will pay Peñoles a 5% fee on the cash purchase price, also payable in common shares of the Company.  If Peñoles acquires prop-
erty from a third party introduced by the Company, Peñoles will pay the Company a 5% fee on the cash purchase price.  In com-
pensation for the nine mining properties, certain mining equipment located thereon and the formation of the strategic alliance, the 
Company issued 1,000,000 units at a deemed price of $1.73 per unit to Peñoles in July 2005;  each unit consisted of one common 
share and one warrant to purchase an additional common share at $2.10 until July 22, 2006 and thereafter at $2.30 until July 22, 
2007. 
 
In July 2005, the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in two silver properties, Porvenir Dos and 
La Sultana, in the Guanacevi district, Durango, Mexico, for US$137,500 of which US$37,500 have been paid during the period 
ended December 31, 2005 and US$100,000 is due on December 30, 2006.  An exploration program of detailed surface trenching 
and diamond drilling was implemented for Porvenir Dos in 2005 which continued into 2006 and identified a high-grade silver 
ore-body. 
 
In August 2005, the Company entered into an option agreement to acquire a 100% interest in four silver properties, La Prieta, El 
Aguaje de Arriba, Ampliacion El Aguaje de Arriba and La Plata, in the Guanacevi district, Durango, Mexico, for US$100,000 of 
which US$15,000 had been paid in the fiscal period ended December 31, 2005, and US$15,000 was paid subsequent to the De-
cember 31, 2005 period end and the balance of US$70,000 is payable on August 5, 2007. 
 
In August 2005, the shares of the Company were listed for trading on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the trading symbol, 
EJD.  Such listing should help broaden the Company’s exposure in the European investment community and enhance liquidity 
for shareholders. 
 
 In October 2005, the Company completed a bought deal private placement for 6,000,000 units at $2.40 per unit for gross pro-
ceeds of $14.4 million.  Each unit was comprised of one common share and one-half common share purchase warrant.  Each full 
warrant is exercisable to purchase one common share at an exercise price of $2.90 until October 5, 2007.  Salman Partners Inc. 
acted as the lead underwriter for a syndicate of underwriters which included Canaccord Capital Corporation and Dundee Securi-
ties Corporation.  The underwriters received a cash commission of $936,000 and 450,000 agents’ warrants which have the same 
terms as the warrants in the private placement.  The proceeds from the financing are being used for the exploration and develop-
ment of the Company’s Mexican silver properties, for further acquisitions and for general working capital. 
 
Also, in October 2005, the Company acquired a mining lease on the El Porvenir property, Guanacevi district, Durango, Mexico.  
Under the lease agreement, the Company holds the exclusive right to mine the El Porvenir property for a 5-year period, which 
can be extended for another 5 years, by mutual agreement.  The Company has agreed to explore and, if successful, to develop and 
mine El Porvenir at the rate of between 9,000 tonnes and 27,000 tonnes per quarter and to pay a 3% net smelter royalty from pro-
duction.  To maintain its rights, the Company must spend at least US$100,000 each quarter on all exploration, development and 
mining costs, and also must spend a further US$500,000 on all costs by October 2006. 
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At January 28, 2006, the Company made payments totalling US$1 million thereby fully earning and vesting its 51% interests in 
the Guanacevi Project. 
 
On February 7, 2006, the shares of the Company were listed for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange;  previously its shares 
were listed on the TSX Venture Exchange. 
 
In March 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with Salman Partners Inc. to act as lead agent for a syndicate of agents, 
including BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc., Canaccord Capital Corporation and Dundee Securities Corporation, in a best efforts private 
placement offering of up to 5 million special warrants at $4.50 per special warrant for gross proceeds of up to $22.5 million.  An 
over-subscription option allowed for up to an additional 2 million special warrants for additional proceeds of $9 million.  On 
April 24, 2006, the Company closed the placement for 5.11 million special warrants, for gross proceeds of $22,995,000.  Each 
special warrant is comprised of one common share and one-half of a share purchase warrant.  Each whole share purchase warrant 
will be exercisable to purchase one common share at a price of $5.25 for a period of 18 months from the closing date.  In the 
event the Company fails to obtain receipts for a final prospectus qualifying the common shares and common share purchase war-
rants issuable on the exercise of the special warrants on or before July 15, 2006, each special warrant will entitle the holder to 
acquire 1.1 common shares and 0.55 share purchase warrant.  For the private  placement, the agents will receive a cash commis-
sion of 6% of the gross proceeds and broker warrants exercisable for common shares equal to 6% of the total special warrants 
placed.  The broker warrants have the same terms as the warrants in the private placement.  The Company has agreed to seek a 
conditional listing for the share purchase warrants on the Toronto Stock Exchange as of the closing date.  The private placement 
is subject to all necessary regulatory and shareholder approvals.  The issuance of the remaining 1.89 million special warrants is 
subject to shareholder and regulatory approvals, and would provide gross proceeds of $8,505,000 to the Company. 
 
The Report to Shareholders included in the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the period ended December 
31, 2005 provides further review of the Company’s overall performance for the period ended December 31, 2005 and for an out-
look for fiscal 2006. 
 
 
1.3         Selected Annual Information 
 
Selected annual information for the Company for each of the three fiscal periods ended December 31, 2005, February 28, 2005 
and February 29, 2004 are as follows: 
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Ten Months Ended Years Ended
December 31, February 28, February 29,

(in $000s except per share amounts) 2005 2005 2004

Total revenues -$                          -$                     -$                

Loss before discontinued operations and extraordinary items:
(i)  Total (5,669)$                 (2,565)$            (779)$          
(ii)  Basic per share (0.23)$                   (0.15)$              (0.11)$         
(iii)  Diluted per share (0.23)$                   (0.15)$              (0.11)$         

Net loss:
(i)  Total (5,669)$                 (2,565)$            (779)$          
(ii)  Basic per share (0.23)$                   (0.15)$              (0.11)$         
(iii)  Diluted per share (0.23)$                   (0.15)$              (0.11)$         

Total assets (1) 30,400$                11,246$           761$           
Total long-term liabilities (1) -$                      -$                 -$            
Dividends per share -$                      -$                 -$            
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(1)             Total assets and long-term liabilities are as at December 31, 2005, February 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004. 
 
Total assets and net losses increased significantly in the current fiscal periods relative to prior years given that in the period ended 
December 31, 2005 the Company invested $3,183,047 pursuant to option agreements related to its 51% interests in the mine, 
mining concessions and ore processing plant, raised gross proceeds of $14.4 million from brokered and non-brokered private 
placements with additional proceeds of about $7.2 million from the exercise of options and warrants, and increased its level of 
operations with the commensurate increases in expenses and net loss in fiscal 2005, and incurred losses from its option interests 
in the Guanacevi Project. 
 
 
1.4         Results of Operations 
 
 
Period Ended December 31, 2005 – Ten months ended December 31, 2005 compared with twelve months ended February 28, 
2005 
In March 2005, the Company changed its fiscal year end from February 28 to December 31.  During the transition year, the fiscal 
period is for the ten-month period from March 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005. 
 
The Company incurred a net loss of $5.7 million for the period ended December 31, 2005, an increase of about 120% relative to 
the net loss of $2.6 million in the prior fiscal year.  General and administrative expenses for salaries and management, profes-
sional services, office and shareholder relations continue to account for a significant portion of operating expenses, and are higher 
than the prior fiscal year reflecting the greater corporate activity needed to support the more active exploration, mine develop-
ment, mining and property acquisition activities of the Company during the period ended December 31, 2005.  The foreign ex-
change loss in the current fiscal period is attributed to the depreciation of the Mexican pesos relative to historical exchange rates 
for the Canadian dollar given that the accounts of the Company’s Mexican subsidiaries are stated in Mexican pesos.  Also certain 
transactions involved US dollars which currency also depreciated relative to the Canadian dollar.  Stock-based compensation ex-
pense reflects the granting of stock options which was actually lower in the current fiscal period due in part to the reduced num-
ber of options granted in the current period and the vesting provisions.  The Company’s corporate development expenses were 
incurred for seeking properties of merit and further concessions in Mexico in the earlier portion of the fiscal year ended February 
28, 2005.  However for the period ended December 31, 2005, the Company’s primary efforts were also focused on mine develop-
ment and exploration activities for the two prospective zones of the Guanacevi Project. 
 
For the period ended December 31, 2005, losses from options interests in Mexican operations: 

(1)                     The Company had earned a 51% option interest in Minera Santa Cruz as at December 31, 2005 which became a fully 
vested 51% interest on January 28, 2006, pursuant to agreements executed in May 2004. 

 
(2)                     The Company had earned a 51% option interest in the ore processing plant as at December 31, 2005 which became a 

fully vested 51% interest on January 28, 2006, pursuant to agreements executed in May 2004. 
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Minera Processing

(in $000s) Santa Cruz (1) Plant (2) Total

Revenues from operations 5,798$             2,463$             
Costs of operations
(including amortization, depletion and depreciation) (8,229)              (2,930)              
Loss before allocation (2,431)              (467)                 
Allocation to Mexican interests in operations 1,316               229                  
Loss from 51% option interests (1,115)$            (238)$               (1,353)$            
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Pursuant to the agreements executed in May 2004, the Company has a 51% interest in any profits or losses. 
 
Mining activities temporarily ceased during the first quarter as the North Porvenir and the Deep Santa Cruz mines were being 
further drilled and developed for mine production.  Mine development resulted in 8,709 tonnes of development muck with a re-
covery of 326 gpt Ag.  However, mining operations restarted for the North Porvenir mine during the first quarter of the period 
ended December 31, 2005. 
 
In the first quarter ended May 31, 2005, the lack of ore from the Santa Cruz mine contributed to a nominal loss to the Company 
from the operation of the Guanacevi processing plant which was working at significantly below capacity, as it relied upon the 
Santa Cruz mine for most of its ore processing revenues.  The North Porvenir mine provided most of the ore production during 
the balance of the period, as it continued to increase its capacity. 
 
As at December 31, 2005, the Company invested about $4.1 million in mineral properties which are comprised of its 51% option 
interests in both Minera Santa Cruz and in the ore processing plant, mining concessions, and exploration expenditures.  This in-
vestment fell relative to the February 28, 2005 balance of $5.1 million as a result of charging the Company’s option interests in 
the Guanacevi Project for exploration and development costs. 
 
As at December 31, 2005 and February 28, 2005, expenditures on the Company’s mineral properties were comprised of the fol-
lowing: 
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Santa Cruz El Taco San Jose
(in $000s) (Mexico) (Mexico) (Mexico) Total

Balance, February 29, 2004 -$               21$            8$              29$            

Additions during the year:
Acquisition costs 3,865         -                 13              3,878         
Exploration costs:

Assays and surveys 52              -                 1                53              
Drilling 619            -                 -                 619            
Field supplies 271            -                 -                 271            
Geologists and consultants 230            -                 -                 230            
Repair, maintenance and sundry 18              -                 -                 18              
Transportation 52              -                 -                 52              

Mineral properties written-off -                 (21)             (22)             (43)             

Balance, February 28, 2005 5,107         -                 -                 5,107         

Additions during the period:
Acquisition costs 1,948         -                 -                 1,948         
Exploration costs:

Assays and surveys 6                -                 -                 6                
Drilling 493            -                 -                 493            
Field supplies 11              -                 -                 11              
Geologists and consultants 4                -                 -                 4                
Roads and drill pads 30              -                 -                 30              

Mineral properties allocated to operations (3,474)        -                 -                 (3,474)        

Balance, December 31, 2005 4,125$       -$               -$               4,125$       
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To complete the initial acquisition of the Company’s 51% interests, the Company made payments totalling US$1 million on 
January 28, 2006 for the Minera Santa Cruz, the mining concessions and the Guanacevi processing plant.  To earn the remaining 
49% thereafter, payments of US$1.5 million must be made on January 28, 2007 and another US$1.5 million on January 28, 2008. 
 
1.5         Summary of Quarterly Results 
 
The following table presents selected financial information of the Company for each of the last eight quarters ended December 
31, 2005: 

The Company significantly increased its operating and evaluation activities in acquiring and exploring projects in Mexico, as 
shown by commensurate increases in net losses for each quarter during the year ended February 28, 2005 and for the fourth quar-
ter of fiscal 2004.  The lower level of business activities for the same periods in the prior fiscal year was attributed to the Com-
pany’s lower level of financial resources for those periods. 
 
Lower property investigation efforts were expended in the third and fourth quarters of the fiscal year ended February 28, 2005 
than in each of the first two quarters, as the Company focused more on exploration to outline resources in two prospective ore 
zones on the optioned Santa Cruz property and to prepare them for production.  These exploration and mine development efforts 
continued into the first quarter ended May 31, 2005, but mining operations were restarted at the same quarter.  Losses were 
higher in the last quarter of the period ended December 31, 2005 and were in part attributable to the Company’s option interests 
in losses of the mineral properties. 
 
 
1.6         Liquidity and Capital Resources 
 
The following table contains selected financial information of the Company’s liquidity: 
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Dec 31, 2005 Feb 28, 2005 Feb 29, 2004
(in $000s Period End Year End Year End
except per share amounts) Dec 31, 2005 Aug 31, 2005 May 31, 2005 Feb 28, 2005 Nov 30, 2004 Aug 31, 2004 May 31, 2004 Feb 29, 2004

Total revenues -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                   

Loss before discontinued
operations and
extraordinary items:

(i)  Total (3,488)$           (1,024)$           (1,157)$          (649)$             (455)$             (403)$             (1,058)$           (566)$             
(ii)  Basic per share (0.13)$             (0.05)$             (0.05)$            (0.04)$            (0.02)$            (0.02)$            (0.07)$             (0.08)$            
(iii)  Diluted per share (0.13)$             (0.05)$             (0.05)$            (0.04)$            (0.02)$            (0.02)$            (0.07)$             (0.08)$            

Net loss:
(i)  Total (3,488)$           (1,024)$           (1,157)$          (649)$             (455)$             (403)$             (1,058)$           (566)$             
(ii)  Basic per share (0.13)$             (0.05)$             (0.05)$            (0.04)$            (0.02)$            (0.02)$            (0.07)$             (0.08)$            
(iii)  Diluted per share (0.13)$             (0.05)$             (0.05)$            (0.04)$            (0.02)$            (0.02)$            (0.07)$             (0.08)$            

(in $000s) December 31, 2005 February 28, 2005

Cash and cash equivalents 18,561$            4,958$                 
Working capital 18,957$            5,260$                 
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In October 2005, the Company completed a major equity financing in a bought deal private placement for 6,000,000 units at 
$2.40 per unit for gross proceeds of $14.4 million.  Each unit was comprised of one common share and one-half common share 
purchase warrant.  Each full warrant is exercisable to purchase one common share at an exercise price of $2.90 until October 5, 
2007.  During the period ended December 31, 2005, the exercise of warrants and options contributed proceeds of $7.2 million.  
These equity financings significantly increased the financial resources of the Company. 
 
As at December 31, 2005, the Company had invested in silver doré bars.  The book value of the silver doré bars is approximately 
$85,000 (MXP775,405), and they contain 227.359 kilograms of silver and 1,447.83 grams of gold. 
 
In May 2004, the Company completed a financing comprised of brokered and non-brokered private placements for gross pro-
ceeds of approximately $9.9 million to finance the acquisition of the Santa Cruz silver-gold mine and the Guanacevi mill.  In 
February 2005, the Company completed brokered and non-brokered private placements for $1,636,800. 
 
 
1.7         Capital Resources 
 
Item 1.6 provides further details. 
 
 
1.8         Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
 
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements. 
 
1.9         Transactions with Related Parties 
 
For the period ended December 31, 2005, the following transactions involve related parties: 
 
(a) As at December 31, 2005, a balance of $5,688,071 was due from Minera Santa Cruz.  This consisted of the net profits roy-

alty on ore mined to January 28, 2005 totalling $222,498, and advances and allocations to Minera Santa Cruz to fund explo-
ration and mine development expenditures incurred by Minera Santa Cruz totalling $6,580,815, less the Company’s 
$1,115,242 share of the net losses of Minera Santa Cruz during the period.  The net profits royalty receivable and the explo-
ration and mine development advances are unsecured, interest bearing and due on demand. 

 
(b)          Rent of $15,000 was incurred and paid to a company with certain common directors. 
 
 
1.10       First Quarter 
 
Items 1.4 and 1.5 provide further details. 
 
 
1.11       Proposed Transactions 
 
There are no proposed asset or business acquisitions or dispositions, other than those in the ordinary course, before the board of 
directors for consideration. 
 
 
1.12       Critical Accounting Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements requires the Company to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Significant areas requiring the use of estimates relate to mineral properties. 
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Acquisition costs of mineral properties and exploration and development expenditures incurred thereto are capitalized and de-
ferred.  The costs related to a property from which there is production will be amortized using the unit-of-production method.  
Capitalized costs are written down to their estimated recoverable amount if the property is subsequently determined to be uneco-
nomic.  The amounts shown for mineral properties represent costs incurred to date, less recoveries and write-downs, and do not 
reflect present or future values. 
 
1.13       Changes in Accounting Policies Including Initial Adoption 
 
Variable interest entities: 
 

Effective March 1, 2005, the Company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Accounting Guideline 15, 
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities" ("AcG15") on a prospective basis.  AcG15 prescribes the application of consolida-
tion principles for entities that meet the definition of a variable interest entity (“VIE”).  An enterprise holding other than a voting 
interest in a VIE could, subject to certain conditions, be required to consolidate the VIE if it is considered its primary beneficiary 
whereby it would absorb the majority of the VIE’s expected losses, receive the majority of its expected residual returns, or both.  
The adoption of this new standard had no effect on the consolidated financial statements as the Company does not have any 
VIE’s. 

 
 
1.14       Financial Instruments and Other Instruments 
 
There are no financial instruments or other instruments. 
 

1.15        Other MD&A Requirements 
 

1.15.1    Other MD&A Requirements 
 
Additional information relating to the Company are as follows: 
 
(a)          may be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com; 
 
(b)          may be found in the Company’s annual information form;  and 
 
(c)        is also provided in the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2005. 
 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 
                                                                                        For the Period Ended December 31, 2005  (expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted) 
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1.15.3    Outstanding Share Data 
 
The Company’s authorized share capital is comprised of unlimited common shares without par value. 
 
As at December 31, 2005, a total of 93,750 common shares are held in escrow, the release of which is subject to regu-
latory approval. 
 
Changes in the Company’s share capital for the period ended December 31, 2005 were as follows: 
 
 

As at April 21, 2006, the Company had 33,840,876 common shares issued and outstanding. 
 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 
                                                                                        For the Period Ended December 31, 2005  (expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted) 

1.15.2    Additional Disclosure for Venture Issuers without Significant Revenue 
 
(a)          capitalized or expensed exploration and development costs; 
 
              The required disclosure is presented in the notes to the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
(b)          expensed research and development costs; 
               
              Not applicable. 
 
(c)          deferred development costs; 
               
              Not applicable. 
 
(d)          general and administrative expenses;  and 
 
              The required disclosure is presented in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 
 
(e)          any material costs, whether capitalized, deferred or expensed, not referred to in (a) through (d);None. 

Number Amount
of Shares (in $000s)

Balance, February 28, 2005 20,873,269           16,708$              

Issued during the year:
For cash from private placement, net of issue costs 6,000,000             13,354                
From exercise of share purchase options 793,000                1,792                  
For cash from exercise of warrants 3,700,061             6,122                  
For mineral property 1,000,000 1,730                  

Balance, December 31, 2005 32,366,330 39,706$              
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At December 31, 2005, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate 5,508,000 common shares as follows: 
 

At April 21, 2006, warrants for 4,246,454 shares remain outstanding. 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 

At April 21, 2006, options for 2,010,900 shares remain outstanding. 

At December 31, 2005, the Company had outstanding options to purchase an aggregate 2,223,900 common shares as follows: 

December 31, 2005
Number Weighted average
of Shares exercise price

Outstanding, beginning of year 1,871,000          $1.33
Granted 1,155,900          $2.40
Exercised (793,000)            $1.33
Cancelled (10,000)              $2.52

Outstanding, end of year 2,223,900          $1.88

Options exercisable at year-end 1,611,900          

Exercise Oustanding at Oustanding at
Prices Expiry Dates February 28, 2005 Issued Exercised Expired December 31, 2005

$0.35 October 6, 2005 775,000             -                      (775,000)         -                   -                                 
$2.00 October 22, 2005 3,467,559          -                      (2,872,061)      (595,498)      -                                 
$2.00 October 28, 2005 248,000             -                      (48,000)           (200,000)      -                                 

$2.10 / February 1, 2006 /
$2.30 February 1, 2007 1,063,000          -                      (5,000)             -                   1,058,000                   

$2.10 / July 22, 2006 /
$2.30 July 22, 2007 -                         1,000,000       -                      -                   1,000,000                   

$2.90 October 5, 2007 -                         3,450,000       -                      -                   3,450,000                   

5,553,559                  4,450,000       (3,700,061)      (795,498)      5,508,000                   
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1.16       Outlook 
 
The property acquisitions in Mexico coupled with the completion of the $11.5 million financing in the fiscal year ended February 
28, 2005 and the $14.4 million financing in October 2005 along with over $7 million from the exercise of warrants and options 
have facilitated the Company’s goal to fast becoming a top tier primary silver producer.  The special warrant offering of up to 
$31.5 million in equity financing in 2006 would significantly enhance the Company’s ability to seek more advanced properties 
for acquisition and to expand its operations on a more accelerated basis.  These acquisitions and financings should allow the 
Company to expand its landholdings, silver reserves and resources and production.  The Company has the financial resources for 
exploration drilling, underground development and production optimization. 
 
 
1.17       Controls and Procedures 
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
 
Based upon the evaluation of the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures regarding the Company’s audited con-
solidated financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2005 and this MD&A, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that material in-
formation relating to the Company was made known to others within the Company particularly during the period in which this 
report and accounts were being prepared, and such controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information required to 
be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under regulatory rules and securities laws is recorded, proc-
essed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified.  Management of the Company recognizes that any controls 
and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance, and not absolute assurance, of achieving the desired control objectives, 
and management necessarily was required to apply its judgement in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls 
and procedures. 
 
Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these con-
trols subsequent to the date the Chief Executive Officer completed his evaluation, nor were there any significant deficiencies of 
material weaknesses in the Company’s internal controls requiring corrective actions. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 
                                                                                        For the Period Ended December 31, 2005  (expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted) 
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M A N A G E M E N T    T E A M   A N D   B O A R D   O F   D I R E C T O R S  

•Bradford Cooke, M.Sc, P.Geo. - Chairman and CEO, Professional Geologist - 30 years ex-
perience with Shell, Chevron, Noranda and Canarc. 

 
 

•Godfrey Walton, M.Sc, P.Geo. - President and COO, Professional Geologist - 32 years 
  specializing in discovery and development of ore deposits. 

 
 

•Philip Yee, M.B.A., C.P.A., C.G.A., - Vice President, Finance & CFO, 16 years experience 
in corporate management, regulatory reporting, accounting, auditing and taxation. 

 
 

•Bruce Bried, P.Eng. - Vice President, Mining, Mining Engineer - Former mine superinten-
dent for Homestake at Lead, Hemlo, Eskay Creek and Snip. 

 
 

•Michael Rasmussen, Ph.D. - Vice President, Exploration, Professional Geologist -15 years 
  managing exploration programs for Echo Bay Mines and Kinross. 

 
 

•Miguel Ordaz, Ing. - Mexico Projects Director,  Geological Engineer- 32 years experience 
managing exploration and mining projects in Mexico. 

 
 

•Hugh Clarke, - Manager, Investor Relations, 20 years experience specializing in communi-
cations, finance, sales and management of public companies. 

 
 

•Len Harris, P.Eng. - Director, Metallurgical Engineer - Former President of Newmont Peru 
responsible for development of the huge Yanacocha mine. 

 
 

•Mario Szotlender, B.IR. - Director, Businessman - 17 years active investor and Director of 
several mining companies. 
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